
                                                                                                                                     

 
P.O. Box 281 

Walter M. Gardner, Jr. – Mayor                                                                                 Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 
Robert Davie - Town Administrator                                            (252) 257-1122   Fax (252)2579219 

www.warrenton.nc.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MEETING  
7:00 PM Board Meeting 

November 10, 2025 
AGENDA 

Regular Meeting 
1. Call to Order, Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
2. Conflict of Interest Statement  
3. Proposed Agenda 
4. Public Comments 
5. Minutes of Board Meeting and Minutes of Public Hearing from October 13, 2025 
6. Consent Agenda 

a. Mission and Goals 
b. Year-to-Date Revenue and Expenditure Reports (Budget vs. Actual) 
c. Monthly Checks Report 
d. Public Works Monthly Reports 
e. WWTP Monthly Report 
f. Police Activity Reports 
g. Action Items from Prior BOC Meeting 
h. Status of Grants 

7. Committee Reports 
a. Finance and Administration (Ms. Hunter) 

i. Presentation of 2024-25 Audit – Shelton Ennis 
b. Public Works (Mr. Blalock) 
c. Public Safety (Mr. Ayscue) 
d. Human Resources/Information Technology (Mr. White)  
e. Revitalization/Historic District Commission (Mr. Coffman) 

i. Statements of Interest to Serve 
f. Beautification/Facilities (Ms. Sourelis) 
g. Planning/Zoning/Annexation (Mr. Young) 

8. Old Business 
a. Social District Additional Information – for discussion and consideration 
b. Frontier Warren update – for information 

9. New Business 
a. Closing of S. Main Street from Macon to Franklin for festivals – for consideration 
b. Recognition of Woody King as Santa Clause – for discussion and consideration 
c. Forgiveness of HDC Penalty Assessment – for discussion and consideration 
d. Personnel Manual Update (recommended by insurer) – for discussion and consideration 
e. Underground Utilities Engineering Estimate – for discussion 
f. Employee Assistance Agreement (Police Dept, subject to legal review) – for discussion and 

consideration 
g. Debris Site Agreement Renewal – for discussion and consideration 
h. Legal Retainer Agreement – for discussion and consideration 

10. Announcements 
a. Christmas Parade on December 13th 

11. Closed Session per NC GS § 143-318.11 (a.) (5) to discuss contract 
12. Adjournment 



Conflict of Interest Disclaimer 

 “Members of the Town of Warrenton Board of Commissioners are advised, hereby, of 
their duty under the State Government Ethics Act to avoid conflicts of interest and the 
appearance of such conflict; and, further, are instructed to refrain from participating in any 
matter coming before this Town Board of Commissioners with respect to which there is a 
conflict of interest or appearance of such conflict”. 
 

 In accordance with the State Government Ethics Act, it is the duty of every Board member to 
avoid both conflicts of interest and appearances of conflict. 

 Does any Board member have any known conflict of interest or appearance of conflict  
with respect to any matter coming before this Board tonight?     If so, please identify the conflict and 
refrain from any undue participation in the particular matter involved. 
 

 
 

Citizen Comments 
Rules for Citizen Comments 

 

 Please sign up to speak. 

 The maximum time allotted to each speaker will be five (5) minutes;    The Town 
Administrator  will keep time. 

 Any group of people who support or oppose the same position should  
designate a spokesperson. 

 Please address only those items which might not have been addressed by a  
previous speaker. 

 This is not a question and answer session.  If response from the Administrator, Mayor,  
and/or Board is desired, please leave a copy of your comment(s) with the Town 
Administrator. 

 After the Citizen Comments period, comments from the audience are not appropriate 
unless recognized by the Mayor or placed as an agenda item. 

 Order and decorum will be maintained.   
 
Town of Warrenton  
Board of Commissioners 



                                                                                                                                  

 
P.O. Box 281 

Walter M. Gardner, Jr. – Mayor                                                                 Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 
Robert F. Davie, Jr. – Town Administrator                                (252) 257-1122   Fax (252) 257-9219 

www.warrenton.nc.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
     

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS REGULAR MONTHLY MEETING 
October 13, 2025 

7:00 P.M. 
Minutes 

 
Those in attendance were:      

Mayor Walter Gardner  Commissioner Mary Hunter   
Commissioner Nat White  Commissioner Dian Sourelis 
Commissioner Michael Coffman Commissioner John Blalock 
Commissioner Jason Young  Commissioner Aaron Ayscue  
Robert Davie, Town Administrator Meredith Valentine, Finance Director 
Bill Perkinson, Public Works Director 
David Elliott, Chief of Police 
Tracy Stevenson, Minute Taker 

   
 
Call to Order – Pledge of Allegiance and Moment of Silence 
Mayor Walter Gardner called the regular monthly meeting of the Town of Warrenton Board of 
Commissioners to order on Monday, October 13, 2025, at 7:00 p.m.  A Moment of Silence was 
held for the GAZA hostages that were released today and all who are sick, suffering, and in 
need.  The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Commissioner White.   
 
Conflict of Interest Statement and Proposed Agenda 
The Conflict-of-Interest statement was reviewed.  The Proposed Agenda was presented. Mayor 
Gardner requested the following addition to the proposed agenda: 
 Old Business 

(a) Grant Project Ordinance – VW Settlement Grant – Charging Station –  
for consideration 

 
Commissioner Coffman made a motion to approve the proposed agenda as amended, with a 
second by Commissioner Hunter.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote.  
 
Public Comments 
There were none.    
 
 



Minutes  
The minutes of the September 8, 2025, Board of Commissioners meeting were presented.  
Commissioner White made a motion to approve the minutes, with a second by Commissioner 
Young.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote.  
 
Consent Agenda 

(a) Mission and Goals 
(b) Year-to-date Revenue and Expenditure Reports (Budget vs. Actual) 
(c) Monthly Checks Report 
(d) Public Works Monthly Report 
(e) WWTP Monthly Report 
(f) Police Activity Report 
(g) Action Items from Prior BOC Meeting 
(h) Status of Grants 
(i) Budget Amendments #4, #5 

 
Commissioner Young made a motion to approve the Consent Agenda as presented, with a 
second by Commissioner Sourelis.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote.  
 
Closed Session per NC GS 143-318.11 (a)(6) – Mayor Gardner announced that the Board would 
move into Closed Session.  Commissioner Blalock made a motion to return to open session, 
with a second by Commissioner Ayscue.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote. 
 
Committee Reports  

(a) Finance and Administration –Commissioner Hunter had no additional report other 
than agenda items.  

(b) Public Works – Commissioner Blalock had no additional report other than agenda 
items. Public Works Director, Bill Perkinson informed the Board that the four-wheel 
drive tractor is currently in need of repair and is in the shop for evaluation.  
Commissioner Blalock made a motion to hire Brandon Elliott as the new Public 
Works Director beginning November 1, 2025, at an annual salary of $93,000.  Mr. 
Elliott will train under current Public Works Director, Bill Perkinson, until his 
retirement on December 31, 2025. With a second by Commissioner Coffman, the 
motion was approved by unanimous vote.      

(c) Public Safety – Commissioner Ayscue had no additional report other than agenda 
items.  Chief David Elliott presented the monthly report to the Board.   

(d) Human Resources – Information Technology – Commissioner White had no 
additional report other than agenda items.    

(e) Revitalization/Historic District Commission – Commissioner Coffman stated that the 
Harvest Moon Festival was successful despite having a smaller turn out due to 
weather.  Mr. Coffman stated that the Historic District Commission approved four 
Certificate of Appropriateness that included, a balustrade installed at 305 Halifax 
Street, a shed at 123 N. Front Street, removal of a pecan tree at 204 Church Street, 
and change in the length of a previously approved driveway at 217 N. Main Street.   

(f) Beautification/Facilities – Commissioner Sourelis had no additional report other than 
agenda items.   Ms. Sourelis inquired about additional crosswalks located across NC 
DOT streets at various locations.  Town Administrator, Robert Davie stated that he 
would follow up with NC DOT on same.   



(g) Planning/Zoning/Annexation – Commissioner Young stated that the Planning Board 
met and recommended several special-use permits for consideration by the Board.  
The Planning Board recommendations will be considered during the Old Business 
portion of the agenda.   

 
Old Business 

• Grant Project Ordinances – USDA Leaf Machine – VW Settlement Charging Station - for 
consideration – Town Administrator, Robert Davie presented the USDA Leaf Machine 
Grant Project Ordinance for consideration.  Commissioner Blalock made a motion to 
approve the USDA Leaf Machine Grant Project ordinance as presented, with a second by 
Commissioner Coffman.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote.  Mr. Davie 
presented the VW Settlement Chargin Station Grant Project Ordinance for consideration.  
Commissioner Coffman made a motion to approve the ordinance as presented, with a 
second by Commissioner Hunter.  The motion was approved by unanimous vote.    

• Evidentiary Hearing: Special Use Permits – for consideration – Town Administrator, 
Robert Davie presented the Planning Board recommendations for approval of four Special 
Use Permits for consideration.  The application for 719 N. Main Street would allow for 
short-term rental (Air BNB).  Commissioner Coffman made a motion to approve the 
special use permit based on the Planning Board recommendation and based on the fact 
that all ten of the requirements for a special use permit were met by applicant.  
Commissioner Sourelis seconded the motion, and the motion was approved by 
unanimous vote.  The application for 414 Church Street would allow for short-term rental 
(Air BNB).  Commissioner Coffman made a motion to approve the special use permit 
based on the Planning Board recommendation and that all ten of the requirements for a 
special use permit have been met by applicant.  Commissioner Young seconded the 
motion, and the motion was approved by unanimous vote.  The application for 114 
Franklin Street would allow for outdoor sales of automobiles.  Commissioner Coffman 
made a motion to approve the special use permit based on the Planning Board 
recommendation and that all ten of the requirements for a special use permit have been 
met by applicant.  Commissioner White seconded the motion and the motion was 
approved by unanimous vote.  The application for 669 US Highway 401 South would allow 
for construction and placement of a manufactured home in area designated R-20.  
Commissioner Coffman made a motion to approve the special use permit based on the 
Planning Board recommendation and that all ten of the requirements for a special use 
permit have been met by applicant.  Commissioner Sourelis seconded the motion, and the 
motion was approved by unanimous vote. 
   

New Business 
 

(a) Social District – Request from Revitalization Committee -  Town Administrator, Robert 
Davie presented a Social District request from the Revitalization Committee for special 
events hosted by the Town, such as Harvest Moon and Eastern Bluebird Festivals.  The 
request is for Town-sponsored events only.   Commissioner Coffman requested that the 
Board take time to consider the request at a later meeting to allow for him to discuss 
details with Chief of Police, David Elliott and Town Administrator, Robert Davie.     

i.  
Announcements – Mayor Gardner announced that early voting will start on Thursday, October 
16, 2025, and urged everyone to exercise their right to vote.   



 
With no further business, the meeting was adjourned.   



                                                                                                                                  

 
P.O. Box 281 

Walter M. Gardner, Jr. – Mayor                                                                 Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 
Robert F. Davie, Jr. – Town Administrator                                 (252) 257-1122   Fax (252) 257-9219 

www.warrenton.nc.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
     

PUBLIC HEARING  
Special Use Applications 

October 13, 2025 
6:45 PM 

 
 

 

Mayor Gardner called the Public Hearing of the Town of Warrenton Board of Commissioners to 
order on Monday, October 13, 2025, at 6:45 p.m.  The purpose of this public hearing is to invite 
citizen comments on various Special Use applications.  Those attending were Mayor Walter 
Gardner, Town Administrator, Robert Davie, Commissioners Mary Hunter, John Blalock, Michael 
Coffman, Nat White, Dian Sourelis, Aaron Ayscue, and Jason Young.   
 
 
Mayor Gardner asked for public comments.   
 
 
There were no public comments. After fifteen minutes of open hearing the meeting was 
adjourned.  
 
 
   
 







MTD QTD

34 FRONTIER WARREN

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

13,333 0.00 0.00 (13,333.00)34-335-340 State Econ & Infra Dev Grant FW 
Rev

0.000.00

41,850 3,000.00 9,390.00 (32,460.00) 22%34-351-422 Rent Paid to Town Frontier 
Warren

3,000.000.00

1,988 0.00 0.00 (1,988.00)34-381-037 Transfer in from GF 0.000.00

0.00 3,000.00 9,390.00Revenues Totals: 16%57,171 3,000.00 (47,781.00)Revenues

Expenses

300 0.00 34.26 265.74 11%34-405-203 Supplies 0.000.00

3,000 191.25 944.81 825.00 73%34-405-250 Lights/Heat/Security 191.251,230.19

2,900 198.40 1,081.20 95.60 97%34-405-251 Telephone/Internet 198.401,723.20

2,800 50.00 337.00 2,363.00 16%34-405-255 Bldg Maint/Clean Srvs 50.00100.00

38 0.00 0.00 38.0034-405-400 Liability Insurance 0.000.00

34,500 3,000.00 15,000.00 1,500.00 96%34-405-422 Rent Paid by Town 3,000.0018,000.00

300 0.00 0.00 300.0034-405-499 Miscellaneous 0.000.00

43,838 3,439.65 17,397.27 5,387.34Totals:Non-Departmental 88%3,439.6521,053.39

13,333 0.00 13,333.33 (0.33) 100%34-432-701 State Econ & Infra Dev Grant FW 
Exp

0.000.00

13,333 0.00 13,333.33 (0.33)Totals: 100%0.000.00

21,053.39 3,439.65 30,730.60Expenses Totals: 91%57,171 3,439.65 5,387.01Expenses

34 FRONTIER WARREN Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses: (21,340.60)(439.65)(439.65)

Page Of1 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

37 GENERAL FUND

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

620,784 71,905.64 53,840.24 (566,943.76) 9%37-302-301 Ad Valorem Taxes - Current 71,905.640.00

5,000 1,592.98 2,501.54 (2,498.46) 50%37-302-302 Ad Valorem Taxes - Prior Year 1,592.980.00

2,000 0.00 (310.57) (2,310.57) -16%37-302-303 Ad Valorem Taxes - all other prior 
years

0.000.00

2,200 144.32 835.24 (1,364.76) 38%37-302-304 Ad Valorem Taxes - Penalties & 
Interest

144.320.00

41,054 4,134.67 15,745.13 (25,308.87) 38%37-307-310 Motor Vehicles - Current 4,134.670.00

377,000 35,384.64 39,433.25 (337,566.75) 10%37-320-320 Local Option Sales Tax Monthly 35,384.640.00

0 0.00 37,665.00 37,665.0037-320-321 Annual Refund of Sales Tax the 
Town paid

0.000.00

88,600 0.00 345.53 (88,254.47) 0%37-325-325 Utility Franchise Tax Quarterly 0.000.00

1,000 99.94 211.95 (788.05) 21%37-325-328 Refund of Gas Tax paid monthly 99.940.00

600 0.00 150.56 (449.44) 25%37-325-330 Solid Waste Disposal Tax Qrly 0.000.00

33,916 0.00 16,785.32 (17,130.68) 49%37-335-335 Powell Bill 0.000.00

200 0.00 25.00 (175.00) 13%37-345-344 Historic District Comm Fees 0.000.00

1,800 400.00 1,950.00 150.00 108%37-345-345 Zone Board of Adj 400.000.00

3,500 900.00 1,500.00 (2,000.00) 43%37-345-346 Code Enforcement 900.000.00

208,926 17,710.17 71,108.43 (137,817.57) 34%37-351-353 Landfill Fees Residential 17,710.170.00

700 0.00 0.00 (700.00)37-351-355 Cemetery Fees 0.000.00

50 0.00 0.00 (50.00)37-351-356 Police Rpt Fees 0.000.00

200 9.00 18.00 (182.00) 9%37-351-357 Court Fees 9.000.00

64,680 2,964.50 5,120.50 (59,559.50) 8%37-351-360 Cell Tower Rent 2,964.500.00

100 0.00 0.00 (100.00)37-351-361 Parking/Ordinance Collections 
PD

0.000.00

100 0.00 0.00 (100.00)37-351-401 Debt Setoff Landfill 0.000.00

60 0.00 17.04 (42.96) 28%37-365-001 Interest Income 0.000.00

500 0.00 0.00 (500.00)37-365-002 NCCMT Debt Setoff 
Disbursement

0.000.00

15,000 5,000.00 7,260.00 (7,740.00) 48%37-365-034 Storefront Beautification Rev 5,000.000.00

Page Of2 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

37 GENERAL FUND

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

25,000 921.18 5,701.18 (19,298.82) 23%37-365-351 Revitalization Comm 921.180.00

750 0.00 0.00 (750.00)37-365-354 Quilters Lane Revenue 0.000.00

1,000 0.00 0.00 (1,000.00)37-365-358 Branded Merchandise for Sale 0.000.00

64,057 0.00 16,184.56 (47,872.44) 25%37-365-370 WWTP 25% of GF Exp 0.000.00

122,255 0.00 33,635.05 (88,619.95) 28%37-365-371 WS 25% of GF Exp 0.000.00

7,478 1,216.00 7,477.55 0.00 100%37-365-374 Insurance Proceeds GF 1,216.000.00

100 0.00 0.00 (100.00)37-365-401 Mis/Revenue/License Tags 0.000.00

24,000 0.00 6,322.64 (17,677.36) 26%37-365-410 Interest Investment NCCMT 0.000.00

0.00 142,383.04 323,523.14Revenues Totals: 19%1,712,610 142,383.04 (1,389,086.41)Revenues

Expenses

181,117 14,522.36 60,966.24 120,150.76 34%37-401-010 Salary - Full Time 14,522.360.00

56,039 4,268.80 19,209.60 36,829.40 34%37-401-012 Salary - Adm Assistant 4,268.800.00

13,856 1,110.48 4,661.76 9,194.24 34%37-401-020 ER-FICA Taxes 1,110.480.00

4,287 326.08 1,467.36 2,819.64 34%37-401-021 ER-FICA Taxes - Adm Assistant 326.080.00

49,257 3,983.72 16,997.25 32,259.75 35%37-401-030 ER-Retirement - Orbit 3,983.720.00

35,000 2,747.51 10,099.22 22,143.34 37%37-401-040 ER-Health Insurance 2,747.512,757.44

570 46.50 232.50 12.00 98%37-401-050 ER-Life Insurance 46.50325.50

400 0.00 262.32 0.00 100%37-401-060 ER-Workman's Comp 0.00137.68

2,000 0.00 0.00 1,600.00 20%37-401-200 Travel Expense 0.00400.00

5,000 635.59 1,062.33 3,789.39 24%37-401-203 Supplies 635.59148.28

8,500 231.85 1,838.02 2,762.00 68%37-401-250 Light, Heat & Security 231.853,899.98

4,000 363.61 1,048.60 1,119.90 72%37-401-251 Telephone & Postage 363.611,831.50

22,278 2,362.63 11,630.28 8,703.04 61%37-401-255 Bldg. Maint/ Clean SVS 2,362.631,944.88

3,750 300.00 1,200.00 2,550.00 32%37-401-256 Bank Fees/ Petty Cash 300.000.00

5,000 0.00 340.00 4,660.00 7%37-401-295 Training 0.000.00

9,000 778.60 3,241.86 10.27 100%37-401-301 Computer Maint 778.605,747.87

1,000 35.98 402.63 273.55 73%37-401-302 Software Support 35.98323.82

800 0.00 412.50 387.50 52%37-401-304 Website 0.000.00

1,000 0.00 0.00 1,000.0037-401-305 Technology Upgrades 0.000.00

Page Of3 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

37 GENERAL FUND

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

500 0.00 500.00 0.00 100%37-401-306 Awning 25% Fund 0.000.00

2,500 25.00 135.00 1,395.00 44%37-401-307 Special Events 25.00970.00

2,270 295.45 295.45 1,974.55 13%37-401-309 Advertising 295.450.00

4,000 0.00 2,068.15 1,505.85 62%37-401-310 Dues & Subscriptions 0.00426.00

2,000 381.84 1,551.95 9.89 100%37-401-325 NC Sales/Use Tax Paid (No Tax) 381.84438.16

7,800 0.00 0.00 7,727.55 1%37-401-400 Liability Insurance 0.0072.45

8,000 1,104.65 1,378.21 6,621.79 17%37-401-401 County Tax Collection Svs 1,104.650.00

13,117 0.00 9,062.50 417.00 97%37-401-405 Audit Expense 0.003,637.50

8,500 0.00 0.00 8,500.0037-401-410 Election Cost 0.000.00

268 83.97 352.05 (83.97) 131%37-401-415 Economic Development 83.970.00

3,500 0.00 1,200.00 1,100.00 69%37-401-420 Attorney Fees 0.001,200.00

0 0.00 7,955.36 (7,955.36)37-401-497 Sales & Uses Tax Expense 0.000.00

1,732 0.00 30.00 1,701.92 2%37-401-499 Miscellaneous Expense 0.000.00

10,576 0.00 5,218.99 5,357.01 49%37-401-802 Truist Parking Lot Loan Principal 0.000.00

5,667 0.00 2,902.01 2,764.99 51%37-401-832 Truist Parking Lot Loan Interest 0.000.00

5,000 0.00 0.00 5,000.0037-401-998 Contingency 0.000.00

478,284 33,604.62 167,722.14 286,301.00Totals:General Government 40%33,604.6224,261.06

1,500 125.00 500.00 1,000.00 33%37-402-014 Mayor Part Time Salary 125.000.00

115 9.56 38.24 76.76 33%37-402-020 ER - FICA TAXES 9.560.00

70 0.00 48.29 0.00 100%37-402-060 Workers Comp Mayor & Council 0.0021.71

300 0.00 0.00 300.0037-402-200 Travel Expense 0.000.00

1,500 0.00 0.00 1,500.0037-402-295 Training 0.000.00

200 0.00 0.00 200.0037-402-402 Commission offsite meetings 0.000.00

3,685 134.56 586.53 3,076.76Totals:Governing Body 17%134.5621.71

7,500 40.20 6,918.20 464.00 94%37-405-345 Zoning/Ordinances 40.20117.80

1,000 0.00 0.00 1,000.0037-405-407 Branded Clothing Sales 0.000.00

1,250 0.00 1,090.00 160.00 87%37-405-423 Quilters Lane 0.000.00

220 181.43 181.43 38.57 82%37-405-430 Historic District Comm 181.430.00

15,000 1,047.44 547.44 14,447.90 4%37-405-434 Storefront Beautification Exp 1,047.444.66

Page Of4 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

37 GENERAL FUND

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

25,000 3,411.90 3,759.02 20,920.98 16%37-405-450 Revitalization Comm 3,411.90320.00

1,500 0.00 0.00 1,500.0037-405-470 Small Town Maint St 0.000.00

51,470 4,680.97 12,496.09 38,531.45Totals:Non-Departmental 25%4,680.97442.46

301,716 20,301.38 89,378.92 212,336.62 30%37-501-010 SALARY FULL TIME 20,301.380.00

5,000 570.00 5,970.00 (970.00) 119%37-501-014 Salary - Part Time 570.000.00

15,000 1,085.94 4,343.76 10,656.24 29%37-501-015 Salary-LEO Separation Allowance 1,085.940.00

43,827 3,329.60 14,983.20 28,843.80 34%37-501-016 Salary - Admin Assistant 3,329.600.00

10,000 0.00 1,816.14 8,183.86 18%37-501-019 Salary - Over-Time 0.000.00

26,431 1,914.45 8,827.03 17,603.97 33%37-501-020 ER-FICA Taxes 1,914.450.00

78,982 5,361.00 24,087.52 54,894.48 30%37-501-030 ER - Retirement  Orbit 5,361.000.00

15,084 1,015.07 4,559.76 15.18 100%37-501-031 ER - 401K 5% 1,015.0710,509.06

55,982 3,363.87 12,018.71 42,383.04 24%37-501-040 ER - Health Insurance 3,363.871,580.25

1,152 77.50 387.50 222.00 81%37-501-050 ER - Life Insurance 77.50542.50

6,525 0.00 6,525.46 0.00 100%37-501-060 ER - Workman's Comp 0.000.00

1,500 124.49 124.49 700.00 53%37-501-200 Travel Expense 124.49675.51

5,000 629.43 1,774.56 2,274.22 55%37-501-203 Supplies 629.43951.22

5,000 666.95 730.21 4,024.31 20%37-501-204 Uniforms 666.95245.48

4,000 108.00 563.27 3,360.73 16%37-501-205 Equipment & Material 108.0076.00

420 0.00 0.00 420.0037-501-206 Ammunition 0.000.00

9,000 231.85 1,838.02 3,262.00 64%37-501-250 Light, Heat & Security 231.853,899.98

8,106 344.60 2,300.52 451.44 94%37-501-251 Telephone & Postage 344.605,354.08

15,000 1,647.74 4,466.37 0.00 100%37-501-252 Fuel 1,647.7410,533.63

7,151 1,146.63 5,899.40 0.38 100%37-501-255 Bldg Maint/Clean Svs 1,146.631,251.22

2,000 330.00 1,976.38 23.62 99%37-501-295 Training 330.000.00

9,532 968.54 3,639.89 89.28 99%37-501-301 Computer Maint 968.545,802.83

9,337 259.99 7,372.79 0.00 100%37-501-302 Software Support 259.991,964.21

250 0.00 0.00 250.0037-501-318 Freight Charges 0.000.00

4,000 0.00 1,196.00 2,804.00 30%37-501-351 Maint & Repair Equip 0.000.00

1,500 0.00 77.06 1,000.00 33%37-501-370 2019 Dodge Car 100 0.00422.94

Page Of5 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

37 GENERAL FUND

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

1,500 262.70 379.72 882.98 41%37-501-371 2017 Dodge Car 200 262.70237.30

1,500 102.73 647.96 147.27 90%37-501-372 2016 Dodge Car 300 102.73704.77

1,300 0.00 0.00 800.00 38%37-501-373 2017 Dodge Car 400 0.00500.00

1,500 197.71 197.71 1,000.00 33%37-501-376 2019 Dodge Car 700 197.71302.29

1,500 708.84 708.84 791.16 47%37-501-377 2023 Dodge Car 125 708.840.00

1,500 124.83 124.83 1,000.00 33%37-501-378 2023 Dodge Car 225 124.83375.17

23,797 0.00 0.00 23,724.55 0%37-501-400 Liability Insurance 0.0072.45

3,000 0.00 0.00 3,000.0037-501-415 Medical 0.000.00

12,500 0.00 0.00 12,500.0037-501-420 Attorney Fees 0.000.00

3,000 110.17 (307.67) 3,123.64 -4%37-501-433 COP Program 110.17184.03

857 355.94 355.94 501.02 42%37-501-499 Miscellaneous 355.940.00

5,268 0.00 0.00 5,268.0037-501-804 Police 2019 Cars Loan Principal 
(USDA)

0.000.00

7,651 0.00 0.00 7,651.0037-501-805 Police 2023 Cars Loan Principle 
(USDA)

0.000.00

158 0.00 0.00 158.0037-501-834 Police 2019 Cars Loan Interest 
(UDSA)

0.000.00

1,327 0.00 0.00 1,327.0037-501-835 Police 2023 Cars Loan Interest 
(USDA)

0.000.00

707,853 45,339.95 206,964.29 454,703.79Totals:Police Department 36%45,339.9546,184.92

2,682 378.24 1,260.80 1,421.20 47%37-601-014 Salary - Part Time Code 
Enforcement

378.240.00

230 28.94 96.48 133.52 42%37-601-020 ER-FICA Taxes 28.940.00

660 0.00 593.41 0.00 100%37-601-060 Workers Comp 0.0066.59

456 0.00 0.00 456.0037-601-252 Fuel/Truck Expense/Insurance 0.000.00

200 0.00 0.00 200.0037-601-352 Vehicle Maintenance 0.000.00

87,600 7,300.00 29,200.00 58,400.00 33%37-601-437 Contract Srvs Fire Protection 7,300.000.00

1,550 0.00 0.00 1,550.0037-601-475 Donation to Town Fire 0.000.00

550 90.00 90.00 460.00 16%37-601-476 Code Enforcement Exp 90.000.00

93,928 7,797.18 31,240.69 62,620.72Totals:Fire 33%7,797.1866.59

Page Of6 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

37 GENERAL FUND

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

1,750 0.00 0.00 1,750.0037-651-330 Christmas Lights/Santa House 0.000.00

785 0.00 0.00 785.0037-651-331 Haley Haywood Park 0.000.00

2,000 0.00 182.48 1,817.52 9%37-651-332 Signs below $5,000 0.000.00

4,000 917.70 1,546.09 2,453.91 39%37-651-333 Street Beautification - Below 
$5,000

917.700.00

32,000 2,580.48 10,324.40 1,000.00 97%37-651-335 Street Lighting Electric Bill 2,580.4820,675.60

40,535 3,498.18 12,052.97 7,806.43Totals:Signs and Lights 81%3,498.1820,675.60

86,007 6,477.90 25,876.40 60,130.60 30%37-701-010 Salary - Full Time 6,477.900.00

1,026 0.00 0.00 1,026.0037-701-019 Over-Time 0.000.00

6,693 492.48 1,974.94 4,718.06 30%37-701-020 ER-FICA Taxes 492.480.00

18,171 1,373.32 5,469.51 12,701.49 30%37-701-030 ER - Retirement - Orbit 1,373.320.00

24,036 840.93 3,551.65 19,866.79 17%37-701-040 ER-Health Insurance 840.93617.56

391 48.51 143.35 69.28 82%37-701-050 ER-Life Insurance 48.51178.37

1,856 0.00 1,855.50 0.50 100%37-701-060 ER-Workman's Comp 0.000.00

5,500 737.38 2,775.16 909.84 83%37-701-203 Supplies 737.381,815.00

3,400 350.48 886.64 0.00 100%37-701-204 Uniforms 350.482,513.36

540 55.88 220.93 9.00 98%37-701-251 Telephone & Postage 55.88310.07

10,000 736.71 2,185.18 1,059.08 89%37-701-252 Fuel 736.716,755.74

3,600 3,600.00 3,600.00 0.00 100%37-701-312 Tree Removal 3,600.000.00

6,507 0.00 2,164.82 4,342.18 33%37-701-351 Maint & Repair Equip 0.000.00

6,629 785.42 3,044.42 1,292.96 80%37-701-352 Vehicle Maintenance 785.422,291.24

9,795 0.00 0.00 9,795.0037-701-400 Liability Insurance 0.000.00

4,500 0.00 0.00 4,500.0037-701-431 Street Debris Disposal 0.000.00

2,070 0.00 2,069.50 0.50 100%37-701-500 Capital Outlay over $5000 0.000.00

(16,000) (1,333.00) (5,332.00) (10,668.00) 33%37-701-895 Mowing (1,333.00)0.00

174,721 14,166.01 50,486.00 109,753.28Totals:Streets 37%14,166.0114,481.34

15,000 0.00 1,100.00 13,900.00 7%37-710-361 Maint & Repair POWELL BILL 0.000.00

100 0.00 100.00 0.00 100%37-710-405 Audit Expense POWELL BILL 0.000.00

15,100 0.00 1,200.00 13,900.00Totals:Powell Bill 8%0.000.00

Page Of7 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

37 GENERAL FUND

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

58,089 4,655.56 17,730.15 40,358.85 31%37-801-010 Salary - Full Time Sanitation 4,655.560.00

620 510.75 510.75 109.25 82%37-801-019 Salary - Over Time Sanitation 510.750.00

4,503 391.66 1,385.57 3,117.43 31%37-801-020 ER - FICA Sanitation 391.660.00

12,225 1,095.26 2,843.41 9,381.59 23%37-801-030 ER - Retirement - Orbit Sanitation 1,095.260.00

15,273 1,067.91 1,862.87 13,348.60 13%37-801-040 ER - Health Insurance 1,067.9161.53

251 4.96 24.80 191.48 24%37-801-050 ER - Life Insurance 4.9634.72

3,665 0.00 2,301.88 0.00 100%37-801-060 Workman's Compensation 0.001,363.12

350 0.00 214.90 0.00 100%37-801-203 Supplies 0.00135.10

1,976 276.70 621.95 0.00 100%37-801-204 Uniforms 276.701,354.05

500 32.60 127.53 2.30 100%37-801-251 Telephone & Postage 32.60370.17

4,000 185.11 847.50 900.00 78%37-801-252 Fuel 185.112,252.50

23,112 1,929.00 5,410.72 112.00 100%37-801-350 Landfull Fees 1,929.0017,589.28

2,499 495.37 1,608.01 191.99 92%37-801-352 Vehicle Maintenance 495.37698.73

5,720 0.00 0.00 5,720.0037-801-400 Liability Insurance 0.000.00

132,783 10,644.88 35,490.04 73,433.49Totals:Sanitation 45%10,644.8823,859.20

1,988 0.00 0.00 1,988.0037-901-034 Transfer Out to Frontier Warren 0.000.00

7,281 0.00 0.00 7,281.0037-901-038 Transfer Out to WS for USDA 
Loan

0.000.00

2,813 2,813.00 2,813.00 0.00 100%37-901-079 Transfer out to USDA Leaf 
Machine Grant

2,813.000.00

2,169 0.00 0.00 2,169.0037-901-889 Transfer Out to USDA Loan 
Reserve 

0.000.00

14,251 2,813.00 2,813.00 11,438.00Totals:Transfers Out 20%2,813.000.00

129,992.88 122,679.35 521,051.75Expenses Totals: 38%1,712,610 122,679.35 1,061,564.92Expenses

37 GENERAL FUND Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses: (197,528.61)19,703.6919,703.69

Page Of8 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

38 WATER / SEWER

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

911,133 83,009.91 275,845.24 (635,287.76) 30%38-351-401 Water Sales 83,009.910.00

53 0.00 0.00 (53.00)38-351-402 Debt Setoff WATER 0.000.00

717,364 60,394.87 210,184.13 (507,179.87) 29%38-351-404 Sewer Services 60,394.870.00

42 0.00 0.00 (42.00)38-351-407 Debt Setoff SEWER 0.000.00

22,000 1,879.53 5,653.82 (16,346.18) 26%38-351-408 Town Taps/Connection Fee 1,879.530.00

9,960 575.82 2,848.54 (7,111.46) 29%38-351-416 Dis/Reconnection Fee 575.820.00

2,620 349.50 1,262.10 (1,357.90) 48%38-351-417 Fire Sprinkler 349.500.00

20,972 2,057.90 6,520.02 (14,451.98) 31%38-351-418 Late Fees/Penalty/Cut Off 2,057.900.00

987 210.00 450.00 (537.00) 46%38-351-419 Returned Check Fee 210.000.00

25 0.00 0.00 (25.00)38-351-420 Debt Setoff Late 
Fees/Penalty/Cut Off

0.000.00

13,628 0.00 3,159.33 (10,468.67) 23%38-365-410 Interest/investment  Income 
NCCMT

0.000.00

2,925 375.00 1,325.00 (1,600.00) 45%38-365-421 Account Activation Fee 375.000.00

0 382.40 382.40 382.4038-365-851 Misc Revenue WATER 382.400.00

7,281 0.00 0.00 (7,281.00)38-381-037 Transfer In From GF 0.000.00

60,310 0.00 0.00 (60,310.00)38-395-396 Apropriated Fund Balance 
(Budget Only)

0.000.00

0.00 149,234.93 507,630.58Revenues Totals: 29%1,769,300 149,234.93 (1,261,669.42)Revenues

Expenses

124,185 7,874.80 35,287.16 88,897.84 28%38-851-010 Salary Full Time 7,874.800.00

12,876 954.21 4,478.65 8,397.35 35%38-851-014 Salary - Part Time 954.210.00

7,987 216.84 874.80 7,112.20 11%38-851-019 Salary Over-Time 216.840.00

11,096 689.39 3,096.16 7,999.84 28%38-851-020 ER-FICA Taxes 689.390.00

25,633 1,436.80 6,336.13 19,296.87 25%38-851-030 ER - Retirement Orbit 1,436.800.00

24,997 1,637.95 5,842.67 18,679.56 25%38-851-040 ER - Health Insurance WATER 1,637.95474.77

382 33.65 165.91 6.16 98%38-851-050 ER - Life Insurance 33.65209.93

1,112 0.00 807.36 0.00 100%38-851-060 ER - Workman's Comp 0.00304.64

Page Of9 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

38 WATER / SEWER

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

215 0.00 0.00 215.0038-851-200 Travel Expense 0.000.00

35,000 5,205.43 11,004.31 7,463.50 79%38-851-203 Supplies 5,205.4316,532.19

3,120 433.80 918.39 0.00 100%38-851-204 Uniforms 433.802,201.61

6,090 343.43 1,238.41 1,366.98 78%38-851-250 Light & Heat & Security 343.433,484.61

10,896 914.67 3,138.18 56.25 99%38-851-251 Telephone & Postage 914.677,701.57

10,000 526.58 1,788.50 1,880.29 81%38-851-252 Fuel 526.586,331.21

5,113 573.31 3,170.05 1,193.92 77%38-851-255 Bldg. Maint/Clean Svs 573.31749.03

3,401 262.55 676.11 1,251.00 63%38-851-260 Electric Tank/Pumps 262.551,473.89

1,300 0.00 0.00 950.00 27%38-851-296 Continuing Education 0.00350.00

5,319 516.90 1,918.01 98.07 98%38-851-301 Computer Mantenance 516.903,302.92

9,300 53.29 8,609.84 526.74 94%38-851-302 Software Support 53.29163.42

2,250 0.00 0.00 2,250.0038-851-305 Technology Upgrades 0.000.00

265 102.03 102.03 162.97 39%38-851-309 Advertising 102.030.00

880 12.50 206.67 573.33 35%38-851-310 Dues & Subscriptions 12.50100.00

1,270 0.00 1,151.00 119.00 91%38-851-313 State Permits 0.000.00

21,061 5,265.04 10,530.08 0.84 100%38-851-345 Water Tank Contract 5,265.0410,530.08

1,200 250.00 390.00 200.00 83%38-851-347 Lab Analysis 250.00610.00

3,102 0.00 2,164.83 0.76 100%38-851-351 Maint. & Repair Equip 0.00936.41

3,750 113.95 1,550.20 2,199.80 41%38-851-352 Vehicle Maintenance 113.950.00

13,253 0.00 0.00 13,216.78 0%38-851-400 Town Liability Insurance 0.0036.22

6,559 0.00 4,531.25 209.00 97%38-851-405 Audit Expense 0.001,818.75

31,292 0.00 19.00 31,273.00 0%38-851-434 WS grant expense 0.000.00

16,598 2,720.00 16,142.26 (119.26) 101%38-851-448 External Contract 2,720.00575.00

250,000 28,058.98 53,550.87 0.00 100%38-851-451 Water Purchase 28,058.98196,449.13

2,070 0.00 2,069.50 0.50 100%38-851-500 Capital Outlay $5000 and Above 0.000.00

6,109 0.00 0.00 6,109.0038-851-802 USDA Public Works Trucks - 
Princ Water

0.000.00

29,858 0.00 0.00 29,858.0038-851-803 USDA Town Hall/WS Loan 
Principal

0.000.00

Page Of10 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

38 WATER / SEWER

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

14,502 0.00 0.00 14,502.0038-851-833 USDA Town Hall/WS Loan 
Interest

0.000.00

856 0.00 0.00 856.0038-851-836 USDA Public Works Trucks - Int 
Water

0.000.00

16,000 1,333.00 5,332.00 10,668.00 33%38-851-895 Grass Cutting Expense 1,333.000.00

59,399 0.00 16,817.52 42,581.48 28%38-851-896 WS 25% of GF Expense 0.000.00

6,474 0.00 0.00 6,474.0038-851-998 Contingency 0.000.00

784,770 59,529.10 203,907.85 326,526.77Totals:Water 58%59,529.10254,335.38

124,185 7,874.80 35,179.32 89,005.68 28%38-852-010 Salary - Full Time 7,874.800.00

12,876 954.21 4,478.48 8,397.52 35%38-852-014 Salary - Part Time 954.210.00

7,987 603.32 1,564.17 6,422.83 20%38-852-019 Salary - Over Time Sewer 603.320.00

11,096 721.04 3,149.60 7,946.40 28%38-852-020 ER - FICA Sewer 721.040.00

25,633 1,518.73 6,454.26 19,178.74 25%38-852-030 ER-Retirement Orbit 1,518.730.00

24,997 1,637.91 5,842.49 18,679.95 25%38-852-040 ER-Health Insurance SEWER 1,637.91474.56

382 33.64 165.89 6.16 98%38-852-050 ER-Life Insurance 33.64209.95

1,112 0.00 807.35 0.00 100%38-852-060 ER-Workman's Comp 0.00304.65

215 0.00 0.00 215.0038-852-200 Travel Expense 0.000.00

28,673 2,607.90 13,119.34 0.61 100%38-852-203 Supplies 2,607.9015,553.05

3,120 433.74 918.31 0.00 100%38-852-204 Uniforms 433.742,201.69

7,000 343.51 1,238.42 2,277.02 67%38-852-250 Light & Heat & Security 343.513,484.56

11,312 907.21 3,174.33 388.33 97%38-852-251 Telephone & Postage 907.217,749.34

10,000 526.57 1,788.50 1,880.29 81%38-852-252 Fuel 526.576,331.21

5,113 573.32 2,764.72 1,599.25 69%38-852-255 Bldg. Maint/Clean Svs 573.32749.03

12,000 747.99 3,333.01 0.00 100%38-852-260 Electric Tank/Pumps 747.998,666.99

1,300 0.00 85.00 1,215.00 7%38-852-296 Continuing Education 0.000.00

5,319 516.89 1,917.96 98.19 98%38-852-301 Computer Maint. 516.893,302.85

9,300 53.29 8,609.83 526.75 94%38-852-302 Software Support 53.29163.42

2,250 0.00 0.00 2,250.0038-852-305 Technology Upgrades 0.000.00

500 392.45 392.45 107.55 78%38-852-309 Advertising 392.450.00

Page Of11 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

38 WATER / SEWER

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

880 12.50 206.67 573.33 35%38-852-310 Dues & Subscriptions 12.50100.00

1,500 0.00 0.00 1,288.00 14%38-852-313 State Permits 0.00212.00

3,102 0.00 2,164.82 0.77 100%38-852-351 Maint & Repair Equip 0.00936.41

3,750 113.95 1,550.18 2,199.82 41%38-852-352 Vehicle Maintenance 113.950.00

7,228 0.00 0.00 7,191.77 1%38-852-400 Liability Insurance 0.0036.23

6,559 0.00 4,531.25 209.00 97%38-852-405 Audit Expense 0.001,818.75

15,000 0.00 19.00 14,981.00 0%38-852-434 WS Grant Expense 0.000.00

434,416 0.00 102,746.63 331,669.37 24%38-852-435 Purchase of Sewer Services 0.000.00

22,000 1,142.00 2,102.00 6,748.29 69%38-852-448 External Contract 1,142.0013,149.71

22,073 0.00 0.00 22,073.0038-852-473 WWTP Rehab Annual Payment 0.000.00

2,070 0.00 2,069.50 0.50 100%38-852-500 Capital Outlay $5000 and Above 0.000.00

6,109 0.00 0.00 6,109.0038-852-802 USDA Public Works Trucks - 
Princ Sewer

0.000.00

29,858 0.00 0.00 29,858.0038-852-803 USDA Town Hall/WS Loan 
Principal

0.000.00

14,388 0.00 0.00 14,388.0038-852-804 NCDEQ Unity, Bute & Battle 
Sewer Rehab Princ Only

0.000.00

1,000 0.00 0.00 1,000.0038-852-809 John Riggans Easement Pmt 0.000.00

13,750 0.00 0.00 0.00 100%38-852-811 NCDEQ Sewer Rehab Annual 
Loan- Principal

0.0013,750.00

14,502 0.00 0.00 14,502.0038-852-833 USDA Town Hall/WS Loan 
Interest

0.000.00

856 0.00 0.00 856.0038-852-836 USDA Public Works Trucks - Int 
Sewer

0.000.00

2,200 1,100.00 1,100.00 0.00 100%38-852-837 NCDEQ Sewer Rehab Annual 
Loan- Interest

1,100.001,100.00

59,399 0.00 16,817.53 42,581.47 28%38-852-896 WS 25% of GF Expense 0.000.00

9,960 0.00 0.00 9,960.0038-852-998 Contingency 0.000.00

974,970 22,814.97 228,291.01 666,384.59Totals:Sewer Expenses 32%22,814.9780,294.40

9,560 0.00 0.00 9,560.0038-901-889 Transfer Out to USDA Loan 
Reserve

0.000.00

Page Of12 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

38 WATER / SEWER

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

Reserve

9,560 0.00 0.00 9,560.00Totals:Transfers Out 0.000.00

334,629.78 82,344.07 432,198.86Expenses Totals: 43%1,769,300 82,344.07 1,002,471.36Expenses

38 WATER / SEWER Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses: 75,431.7266,890.8666,890.86

Page Of13 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

39 WWTP

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

Revenues

49,980 17,470.00 28,170.00 (21,810.00) 56%39-351-405 Septic Disposal Service 17,470.000.00

434,416 0.00 102,746.63 (331,669.37) 24%39-351-470 Town Sewer Revenues 0.000.00

316,092 0.00 74,761.07 (241,330.93) 24%39-351-471 Sewer Revenues - County 0.000.00

241,310 0.00 57,073.64 (184,236.36) 24%39-351-472 Sewer Rev Norlina 0.000.00

0 0.00 20.00 20.0039-365-861 Misc Revenue WWTP 0.000.00

0.00 17,470.00 262,771.34Revenues Totals: 25%1,041,798 17,470.00 (779,026.66)Revenues

Expenses

250,406 17,226.18 76,287.59 174,118.41 30%39-861-010 Salary - Full Time 17,226.180.00

9,455 700.00 3,237.50 6,217.50 34%39-861-014 Salary - Part Time 700.000.00

17,343 1,326.01 5,219.03 12,123.97 30%39-861-019 Over-Time 1,326.010.00

21,206 1,329.71 5,870.26 15,335.74 28%39-861-020 ER-FICA Taxes 1,329.710.00

53,582 3,570.64 15,560.93 38,021.07 29%39-861-030 ER - Retirment Orbit 3,570.640.00

46,714 3,343.39 11,848.48 33,911.10 27%39-861-040 ER- Health Insurance 3,343.39954.42

802 65.24 321.55 74.92 91%39-861-050 ER-Life Insurance 65.24405.53

1,584 0.00 1,547.29 0.00 100%39-861-060 ER-Workman's Comp 0.0036.71

500 0.00 0.00 500.0039-861-200 Travel Expense 0.000.00

77,930 6,079.25 29,692.65 20,302.59 74%39-861-203 Supplies 6,079.2527,934.76

5,460 855.41 1,836.26 0.00 100%39-861-204 Uniforms 855.413,623.74

90,000 5,321.82 22,867.47 12,250.00 86%39-861-250 Light, Heat & Security 5,321.8254,882.53

6,787 560.47 2,144.06 0.80 100%39-861-251 Telephone & Postage 560.474,642.14

10,250 734.42 2,045.40 1,030.29 90%39-861-252 Fuel 734.427,174.31

1,500 0.00 0.00 1,500.0039-861-296 Continuing Education 0.000.00

9,289 785.27 3,112.85 908.67 90%39-861-301 Computer Maint. 785.275,267.48

2,781 53.29 824.91 1,442.67 48%39-861-302 Software Support 53.29513.42

2,000 0.00 0.00 2,000.0039-861-305 Technology Upgrades 0.000.00

1,000 527.63 527.63 472.37 53%39-861-309 Advertising 527.630.00

154 0.00 0.00 154.0039-861-310 Dues & Subscriptions 0.000.00

2,250 0.00 920.22 1,329.78 41%39-861-318 Freight Charges 0.000.00

Page Of14 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



MTD QTD

39 WWTP

Description Budget Encumbrance YTD Variance Percent

120,000 3,710.82 38,593.31 55,614.47 54%39-861-342 Maint & Repair Plant 3,710.8225,792.22

72,000 0.00 17,881.50 0.00 100%39-861-344 Sludge Removal 0.0054,118.50

750 0.00 0.00 750.0039-861-345 Beaver Control 0.000.00

11,526 1,125.15 6,604.37 4,921.63 57%39-861-346 Lab Material & Supplies 1,125.150.00

27,225 3,171.00 10,263.00 0.00 100%39-861-347 Lab Analysis 3,171.0016,962.00

3,000 0.00 0.00 3,000.0039-861-348 Tar - Pamlico Dues 0.000.00

1,500 0.00 150.00 1,350.00 10%39-861-349 OSHAComp/Safety M&S 0.000.00

4,750 151.75 1,286.25 3,463.75 27%39-861-352 Vehicle Maintenance 151.750.00

25,068 0.00 0.00 24,995.55 0%39-861-400 Liability Insurance 0.0072.45

13,117 0.00 9,062.50 417.00 97%39-861-405 Audit Expense 0.003,637.50

30,000 0.00 0.00 30,000.0039-861-434 WWTP Grant Expenst 0.000.00

1,000 0.00 172.00 828.00 17%39-861-441 Certify Lab Services 0.000.00

15,621 825.00 8,861.08 0.92 100%39-861-444 Permits & Fees 825.006,759.00

7,044 597.25 2,368.91 0.00 100%39-861-446 Influent Debris Removal 597.254,675.09

2,070 0.00 2,069.49 0.51 100%39-861-500 Capital Outlay $5000 and Over 0.000.00

23,607 0.00 0.00 23,607.0039-861-810 NCDEQ WWTP Phase 2 Principal 0.000.00

64,003 0.00 16,184.56 47,818.44 25%39-861-897 WWTP 25% of GF Exp 0.000.00

8,524 0.00 0.00 8,524.0039-861-998 Contingency 0.000.00

1,041,798 52,059.70 297,361.05 526,985.15Totals:WWTP - Expenses 49%52,059.70217,451.80

217,451.80 52,059.70 297,361.05Expenses Totals: 49%1,041,798 52,059.70 526,985.15Expenses

39 WWTP Revenues Over/(Under) Expenses: (34,589.71)(34,589.70)(34,589.70)

Page Of15 15

Budget vs Actual

11/3/2025 9:30:25 AM

Town of Warrenton

Period Ending 10/31/2025



Check Listing

Date From: 10/1/2025  Date To: 10/31/2025

Vendor Range: 1 800 FLAGPOLE.COM - ZIMA CORPORATION

Town of Warrenton

11/03/2025 09:32 AM Page: 1 of 5

Date AmountCheck Number Bank Vendor

69241 30 AMAZON CAPTIAL SERVICES, INC. 10/03/2025 $123.08

69242 30 Carolina Images by Angela, LLC 10/03/2025 $90.00

69243 30 Core & Main 10/03/2025 $3,478.30

69244 30 DOCUMENT SYSTEMS, INC 10/03/2025 $559.24

69245 30 DUKE ENERGY PROGRESS 10/03/2025 $116.92

69246 30 ENVIRONMENTAL TESTING SOLUTIONS, INC. 10/03/2025 $925.00

69247 30 MERITECH INC 10/03/2025 $2,496.00

69248 30 Purchase Power (Pitney Bowes) 10/03/2025 $244.61

69249 30 SouthData, Inc 10/03/2025 $750.00

69250 30 Spectrum Business 10/03/2025 $169.99

69251 30 TRANSUNION RISK AND ALTERNATIVE DATA
SOLUTIONS, IN

10/03/2025 $240.00

69252 30 USA Bluebook 10/03/2025 $221.44

69253 30 WARREN AUTO PARTS, INC. 10/03/2025 $29.37

69254 30 WARREN COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITIES 10/03/2025 $13,282.11

69255 30 WILSON'S WATER SERVICES 10/03/2025 $825.00

69256 30 WOMACK PUBLISHING CO. INC. 10/03/2025 $539.70

69257 30 AMAZON CAPTIAL SERVICES, INC. 10/08/2025 $476.44

69258 30 CAROLINA DIGITAL PHONE INC 10/08/2025 $316.00

69259 30 Cash 10/08/2025 $1,000.00

69260 30 DOCUMENT SYSTEMS, INC 10/08/2025 $104.06

69261 30 DUKE ENERGY PROGRESS 10/08/2025 $178.83

69262 30 GARY V. WILLIAMS 10/08/2025 $300.00

69263 30 GUPTON SERVICES, INC 10/08/2025 $649.22

69264 30 INVOICE CLOUD, INC. 10/08/2025 $139.90

69265 30 KATALYST NETWORK GROUP LLC 10/08/2025 $2,378.00

69266 30 NC DEPARTMENT OF REVENUE 10/08/2025 $381.84

69267 30 NC DEPT OF STATE TREASURER 10/08/2025 $52.69

69268 30 PETE SMITH TIRE & QUICK LUBE, INC 10/08/2025 $942.95

69269 30 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL 10/08/2025 $223.16

69270 30 RAYMOND H. JONES 10/08/2025 $3,600.00

69271 30 Richard Hunter 10/08/2025 $94.43



Check Listing

Date From: 10/1/2025  Date To: 10/31/2025

Vendor Range: 1 800 FLAGPOLE.COM - ZIMA CORPORATION

Town of Warrenton

11/03/2025 09:32 AM Page: 2 of 5

Date AmountCheck Number Bank Vendor

69272 30 ROBERT DAVIE 10/08/2025 $170.97

69273 30 SOUTHERN CORROSION, INC. 10/08/2025 $5,265.04

69274 30 WARREN COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS 10/08/2025 $1,929.00

69275 30 WHITCO TERMITE & PEST CONTROL 10/08/2025 $50.00

69276 30 GUPTON SERVICES, INC 10/08/2025 $130.00

69277 30 Mary L. Selvidge 10/08/2025 $1,000.00

69278 30 SOUTHERN WATER SERVICE, LLC 10/08/2025 $213.00

69279 30 WHITCO TERMITE & PEST CONTROL 10/08/2025 $100.00

69280 30 CAVANAUGH MACDONALD CONSULTING, LLC 10/09/2025 $325.95

69281 30 QUILL CORPORATION 10/09/2025 $331.33

69282 30 AMAZON CAPTIAL SERVICES, INC. 10/09/2025 $154.24

69283 30 BURNETT LIME COMPANY, INC 10/09/2025 $2,231.61

69284 30 DONALD HENDERSON 10/09/2025 $835.20

69285 30 DUKE ENERGY PROGRESS 10/09/2025 $9,064.49

69286 30 LOUISBURG TRACTOR & TRUCK CO. 10/09/2025 $66.78

69287 30 NORTH CAROLINA 811, INC 10/09/2025 $25.00

69288 30 WOMACK PUBLISHING CO. INC. 10/09/2025 $818.06

69289 30 GALLS QUARTERMASTER 10/10/2025 $66.64

69290 30 NC DIVISION OF MOTOR VEHICLES 10/10/2025 $12.00

69291 30 PETE SMITH TIRE & QUICK LUBE, INC 10/10/2025 $1,373.31

69292 30 QUILL CORPORATION 10/10/2025 $240.13

69293 30 WRIGHT EXPRESS FSC 10/10/2025 $1,647.74

69294 30 FLOYD ENTERPRISES, LLC 10/14/2025 $22.04

69295 30 FRONTIER NATURAL GAS 10/14/2025 $12.42

69296 30 KENNON RANDOLPH WRENN, JR. 10/14/2025 $605.62

69297 30 NC DEQ 10/14/2025 $1,100.00

69298 30 QUILL CORPORATION 10/14/2025 $269.00

69299 30 AAA GAS AND APPLIANCE CO. 10/17/2025 $244.11

69300 30 AHNER SECURITY INC. 10/17/2025 $168.00

69301 30 AMAZON CAPTIAL SERVICES, INC. 10/17/2025 $37.31

69302 30 BLUE RIDGE SPRINGS, INC 10/17/2025 $329.60

69303 30 BREEDLOVE ELECTRIC, INC 10/17/2025 $256.20



Check Listing

Date From: 10/1/2025  Date To: 10/31/2025

Vendor Range: 1 800 FLAGPOLE.COM - ZIMA CORPORATION

Town of Warrenton

11/03/2025 09:32 AM Page: 3 of 5

Date AmountCheck Number Bank Vendor

69304 30 CHRISTINE DICKINSON 10/17/2025 $293.54

69305 30 DOCUMENT SYSTEMS, INC 10/17/2025 $371.84

69306 30 DUKE ENERGY PROGRESS 10/17/2025 $157.59

69307 30 FRONTIER NATURAL GAS 10/17/2025 $20.14

69308 30 INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY SERVICE 10/17/2025 $30.62

69309 30 KING'S FITNESS & NUTRITION CENTER 10/17/2025 $300.00

69310 30 PETE SMITH TIRE & QUICK LUBE, INC 10/17/2025 $219.61

69311 30 SCOTT ERIC LILES 10/17/2025 $750.00

69312 30 SouthData, Inc 10/17/2025 $676.96

69313 30 SOUTHERN SOFTWARE, INC. 10/17/2025 $327.04

69314 30 TIME WARNER CABLE 10/17/2025 $190.00

69315 30 TRI-COUNTY POWER EQUIPMENT INC 10/17/2025 $383.61

69316 30 VC3, Inc. 10/17/2025 $390.48

69317 30 WILDWOOD NURSERY AND GARDEN CENTER,
INC

10/17/2025 $64.05

69318 30 CELLEBRITE, INC. 10/21/2025 $330.00

69319 30 CYNTHIA K. JENKINS 10/21/2025 $88.00

69320 30 FIRST CITIZENS BANK 10/21/2025 $4,002.88

69321 30 GALLS QUARTERMASTER 10/21/2025 $364.59

69322 30 Lant Elrod 10/21/2025 $761.82

69323 30 AT&T MOBILITY II LLC 10/22/2025 $787.47

69324 30 CHRISTINE DICKINSON 10/22/2025 $250.30

69325 30 DUKE ENERGY PROGRESS 10/22/2025 $66.41

69326 30 ERVIN E SHAUL 10/22/2025 $150.00

69327 30 GREGORY POOLE EQUIPMENT CO. 10/22/2025 $4,863.44

69328 30 HUMANA SPECIALTY BENEFITS 10/22/2025 $58.76

69329 30 Mission Communications, LLC 10/22/2025 $518.78

69330 30 PETE SMITH TIRE & QUICK LUBE, INC 10/22/2025 $457.64

69331 30 PETE SMITH TIRE & QUICK LUBE, INC 10/22/2025 $102.34

69332 30 SHEILA ROOKER 10/22/2025 $125.38

69333 30 WATER GUARD, INC. 10/22/2025 $3,947.30

69334 30 Cash 10/23/2025 $50.00



Check Listing

Date From: 10/1/2025  Date To: 10/31/2025

Vendor Range: 1 800 FLAGPOLE.COM - ZIMA CORPORATION

Town of Warrenton

11/03/2025 09:32 AM Page: 4 of 5

Date AmountCheck Number Bank Vendor

69335 30 GARY V. WILLIAMS 10/24/2025 $240.00

69336 30 HACH COMPANY 10/24/2025 $507.99

69337 30 Mission Communications, LLC 10/24/2025 $3,322.00

69338 30 NovaCharge, Inc 10/24/2025 $70,871.00

69339 30 PETE SMITH TIRE & QUICK LUBE, INC 10/24/2025 $1,021.34

69340 30 TRI-COUNTY POWER EQUIPMENT INC 10/24/2025 $1,777.39

69341 30 FLEMING INVESTMENT COMPANY 10/27/2025 $3,000.00

69342 30 HACH COMPANY 10/27/2025 $442.91

69343 30 ONSOLVE, LLC 10/27/2025 $60.00

69344 30 PRUDENTIAL RETIREMENT 10/27/2025 $1,617.69

69345 30 QUILL CORPORATION 10/27/2025 $48.44

69346 30 Riverbend Creative Solutions LLC 10/27/2025 $553.57

69347 30 WARREN AUTO PARTS, INC. 10/27/2025 $5.70

69348 30 WRIGHT EXPRESS FSC 10/27/2025 $1,687.59

69349 30 Always N Bloom 10/28/2025 $14.92

69350 30 AMAZON CAPTIAL SERVICES, INC. 10/28/2025 $21.33

69351 30 COLUMBIAN MUTUAL LIFE INS CO 10/28/2025 $36.89

69352 30 MUTUAL OF OMAHA 10/28/2025 $1,785.82

69353 30 PEAC SOLUTIONS 10/28/2025 $161.85

69354 30 Teresa Harris 10/28/2025 $92.39

69355 30 VERIZON WIRELESS 10/28/2025 $320.08

69356 30 WARREN AUTO PARTS, INC. 10/28/2025 $69.33

69357 30 AMAZON CAPTIAL SERVICES, INC. 10/30/2025 $259.82

69358 30 GFL ENVIRONMENTAL 10/30/2025 $597.25

69359 30 Ruth Reid 10/30/2025 $150.00

69360 30 WARREN COUNTY PUBLIC UTILITIES 10/30/2025 $14,776.87

69361 30 DUKE ENERGY PROGRESS 10/31/2025 $110.71

69362 30 Spectrum Business 10/31/2025 $169.99

69363 30 UNIFIRST CORPORATION 10/31/2025 $3,251.86

69364 30 WARREN AUTO PARTS, INC. 10/31/2025 $81.34

124 Checks Totaling - $192,179.73

Checks Voids Total



Check Listing

Date From: 10/1/2025  Date To: 10/31/2025

Vendor Range: 1 800 FLAGPOLE.COM - ZIMA CORPORATION

Town of Warrenton

11/03/2025 09:32 AM Page: 5 of 5

Date AmountCheck Number Bank Vendor

Totals By Fund
Checks Voids Total

34 $3,439.65 $3,439.65

36 $2,066.92 $2,066.92

37 $34,029.60 $34,029.60

38 $56,674.52 $56,674.52

39 $25,098.04 $25,098.04

80 $70,871.00 $70,871.00

Totals: $192,179.73 $192,179.73



 

Memo 
To: Town Commissioners 

From: Bill Perkinson 

CC: Mayor, Town Administrator 

Date: November 5, 2025 

Re: October 2025 Monthly Activity Report for Public Works 
 

 
Water and Sewer 

• Water and Sewer System Needs – Unfunded: (1) Install magnetic flow meter in 14-inch 
sewer force main where Town of Norlina’s and Warren County’s Sewer enters Town of 
Warrenton’s sewer system (meter would give us precise measurement of volume of sewer in 
route to the wastewater treatment plant from our partners thus helping to ensure accurate 
portioning of monthly wastewater treatment expense between the three partners…Estimated 
Cost - $75,000). (2) Purchase water main valve exercising equipment (Estimated Cost – 
$30,000). (3) Purchase spare pump for Riggans Sewer Lift Station – (Estimated Cost for pump 
- $29,000.00). (4) Purchase spare pump for F&M Sewer Lift Station and install emergency 
port – (Estimated Cost – $65,000). (5) Highway 158 Business East Water Customers…From 
Highway 58 to just past Red Hill Loop Road…Abandon old 2-inch galvanized water main and 
reconnect active services to 8-inch PVC water main (Estimated Cost - $50,000.00). 

 
• Completed Water and Sewer System Maintenance/Repair Related Information: (1) 

Repair – Woods Batwing Mower.  Repaired gearbox.  Contractor: Gary 
Williams…(Labor and Materials - $240.00). (2) Service Agreement – Annual 
agreement with Mission Communications.  SCADA service for 1 PRV Vault, 3 elevated 
water tanks, and 1 sewer lift station.  Contractor: Mission 
Communications…($3,322.00). (3) Emergency Repair – O’Brian Sewer Jetter.  
Repaired fittings and hose.  Contractor: Gary Williams…(Labor-$300.00, Parts 
provided by Town). 

 
Total cost for Maintenance and Repair Equipment (Account No. 38-851-351 & 38-852- 
351) - $00.00 

 
Total cost for External Contract Maintenance and Repair (Account No. 38-851-448 & 38- 
852-448) - $3,862.00 

 
• Water System Fire Hydrants Out of Service: No change. We currently have 12 of 171 hydrants 

that are out of service for various reasons. A status report has been included in the board 
packet with details. 

 
• Unaccounted for Water %: Please note these statistics: 3-Month Average (August – 

September, 2025) Unaccounted for water is 27%. October 2025 unaccounted for 
water was 28%. (4,451,000 gallons purchased and 3,191,000 gallons sold).   Please see 
attached summary for full historical information. 

Town Of Warrenton - 
Public Works 



Streets and Sanitation 

• Current Tasks: Tree pruning. Street curb and gutter cleaning. Signs repair/replacement. 
Loose leaves/debris pick-up. Grass Cutting. Water and sewer line right of ways trimming and 
cutting.  Brick sidewalk power washing.  



 
 

Memo 
To: Town Commissioners 

From: Bill Perkinson 

CC: Mayor, Town Administrator, Warren County Director of Public Utilities, Norlina Director of Public 
Works 

Date: November 5, 2025 

Re: October 2025 Monthly Activity Report for WWTP 
 
 

• Pending Equipment Maintenance and Repairs: (1) Effluent filter controls – Safety issue - 
Replace cylinders and control mechanism for valves located in pit area of filter building. (2) Sand 
blast and refinish site metal structures. (Estimated Cost – Refinishing remaining 
structures - $58,000) (3) Replace Influent Pump 3 Double Mechanical Seal. (Estimated 
Parts and Labor Cost –$4,000) (4) WWTP Sewer Trunk Line – additional construction work 
to resolve drainage issues. (Estimated Cost –$12,500) (5) Oxidation Ditch 2 – integrate 
SCADA system for control of 4 existing mixers. (Estimated Cost –$21,000) (6) Replace 
Influent Pump 3 Impeller. (Estimated Parts and Labor Cost – Gathering Information) (7) 
Oxidation Ditch No. 2 - (4) mixers have been pulled and vegetation removed.  Shafts and impellers 
must be replaced. (Estimated Cost – $25,000) 
 

• Completed Plant Maintenance/Repair Related Information: (1) Emergency Repair – Influent 
Pump Station.  Troubleshooted issue with motor control and replaced float switch.  
Contractor: Liles Pump Company…(Labor - $750.00, Parts – Provided by Plant).   (2)  
Repair – Oxidation Ditch No. 2.  Removed floating mixer shafts.  Contractor: Breedlove 
Electric…(Labor - $240.00). (3) Preventative Maintenance – Liquid Lime System.  Performed 
annual service.  Contractor: Burnett Lime Company…(Labor and Materials - $2,090.50). 
(4)  Repair – Administration Building.  Repaired roof.  Contractor: Gupton 
Services…(Labor - $280.00, Materials - $350.32).  

 
Total cost for Repairs (Account No. 39-861-342) - $3,710.82 
 

• Plant Discharge Quality: Our discharge quality remained good throughout the entire 
month with a total flow of 9.41 million gallons.   

 
 
 

Town Of Warrenton - 
WWTP 



Hydrants Out of Service as of 11-5-25

Hydrant # Location Hydrant Brand Model Bury Depth Year
Description of Problem (vehicle 

damage, leaking, etc.) Parts Needed 

19 West Ridgeway & Spring St. MH #445310 ? 1974 No water coming out of hydrant.

47 Wilcox & Spring Clow Medallion 4 1/2 2013 Inadequate Flow 

31 220 Hayley St. MH #445310 4 1/2 1973 Hydrant assembly is seized. 

33 Across from 514 W Franklin St. WATEROUS W-67U ? ? Hydrant assembly is seized. 

52 End of Pluto St. Kennedy 150` ? 1974 Hydrant assembly is seized. 

66 209 Warren St. USP 855600 5 1/2 1984 Hydrant assembly is seized. 

72 204 Red Hill Loop Rd. USP 855600 5 1/2 1984 Flange is broken - hydrant leaks.

Orded flange repair kit from 
Consolidated Pipe 3-5-25 - 
5/7/25 - Supplier has not 
received repair kit.

80 On Right in front of Armory Mueller Centurion 4 1/2 1990 Hydrant will not cut off. Valve seat received.

82 Across from 318 N. Bute St. Mueller Centurion 4 1/2 ?
Vehicle damage - damage is beyond 
repair.

110 Left of Walgreens  E. Macon St. Mueller Centurion 4 1/2 1975 No water coming out of hydrant. Valve seat received.

139 Hall Street MH #445310 4 1/2 1974 Hydrant will not cut off 

91 S Main St & College St Mueller Centurion 4 1/2 1986 Hydrant or hydrant leg is leaking. Valve seat received.



Bulk Water Purchased From Warren County

FY 2011 - 2012 FY 2012 - 2013 FY 2013 - 2014 FY 2014 - 2015 FY 2015 - 2016 FY 2016 - 2017 FY 2017 - 2018 FY 2018 - 2019 FY 2019 - 2020 FY 2020 - 2021 FY 2021 - 2022 FY 2022 - 2023 FY 2023 - 2024 FY 2024 - 2025 FY 2025 - 2026

Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons
Month Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased
July 8,165,930 10,236,700 5,985,900 6,951,000 6,030,000 6,229,000 6,396,000 6,936,000 7,800,000 6,605,000 6,658,000 4,470,000 7,551,167 5,808,000 4,819,000
August 8,853,170 10,071,600 6,082,000 5,915,000 7,050,000 6,787,000 6,176,000 7,205,000 7,438,000 6,766,000 4,981,333 4,160,000 6,017,167 5,828,000 4,503,000
September 8,055,100 9,384,800 6,031,000 4,848,000 6,000,000 6,404,000 5,996,000 7,235,000 6,180,000 5,282,000 4,228,333 5,180,000 7,272,167 6,470,000 4,568,000
October 7,112,400 8,593,100 5,532,000 5,809,000 6,130,000 4,997,001 6,018,000 7,437,000 6,306,000 5,638,000 3,961,333 5,154,000 8,937,167 6,660,000 4,451,000
November 6,923,700 4,977,400 5,677,000 5,892,000 5,420,000 5,744,000 5,832,000 6,969,000 5,910,000 5,682,000 4,762,333 4,886,000 9,638,167 5,555,000
December 7,166,100 5,293,190 5,383,000 5,037,000 5,990,000 7,305,000 9,051,000 8,237,000 5,129,000 6,756,000 4,123,333 6,145,000 5,316,000 5,001,000
January 6,216,600 6,086,000 6,602,000 5,974,000 5,747,000 6,465,604 7,768,000 6,389,000 5,646,000 5,320,000 4,509,000 4,710,000 4,722,000 5,233,000
February 5,770,050 5,693,400 6,890,000 6,570,000 6,152,000 5,947,000 5,422,000 6,668,000 5,376,000 4,852,000 4,100,000 4,282,167 3,665,000 3,899,000
March 8,927,000 6,079,500 6,928,000 7,289,000 6,606,000 6,023,000 6,382,000 6,067,000 6,120,000 4,987,000 3,578,000 5,123,167 4,532,000 4,483,000
April 8,474,900 6,125,000 6,494,000 6,870,000 5,275,000 6,246,000 5,982,653 5,837,000 6,161,000 4,985,000 4,076,000 3,855,167 5,199,000 3,859,000
May 9,256,300 6,672,640 6,582,362 6,850,000 6,155,000 6,039,000 5,890,033 6,725,000 6,605,000 4,297,000 4,014,000 4,511,167 5,882,000 3,833,000
June 9,941,150 5,006,600 6,656,000 6,320,000 7,404,000 6,419,000 6,047,314 7,800,000 6,766,000 4,357,000 4,469,000 3,334,167 6,480,000 4,316,000

Total 94,862,400 84,219,930 74,843,262 74,325,000 73,959,000 74,605,605 76,961,000 83,505,000 75,437,000 65,527,000 53,460,667 55,810,835 75,211,835 60,945,000 18,341,000

Water Sales - Gallons Billed Out to Town Customers

FY 2011 - 2012 FY 2012 - 2013 FY 2013 - 2014 FY 2014 - 2015 FY 2015 - 2016 FY 2016 - 2017 FY 2017 - 2018 FY 2018 - 2019 FY 2019 - 2020 FY 2020 - 2021 FY 2021 - 2022 FY 2022 - 2023 FY 2023 - 2024 FY 2024 - 2025 FY 2025 - 2026

Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons Gallons
Month Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold Sold
July 5,044,040 4,746,009 3,983,000 4,987,000 3,955,000 4,478,000 3,656,000 4,588,000 6,318,006 4,692,003 3,760,000 3,360,000 3,711,000 3,447,000 3,265,000
August 6,226,031 5,874,014 4,779,000 5,304,000 5,914,000 3,956,000 5,043,004 4,266,000 6,810,003 4,553,003 3,793,000 3,458,000 3,261,000 3,105,000 3,326,000
September 5,175,024 4,242,015 4,735,000 4,478,000 5,627,000 5,082,000 3,994,000 4,369,000 5,412,004 4,302,001 3,658,000 3,355,000 3,419,000 3,318,000 3,401,000
October 4,602,016 3,859,012 4,270,000 3,592,000 3,875,000 3,815,000 3,772,000 4,110,000 7,454,004 3,772,000 3,445,000 3,516,000 3,496,000 2,931,000 3,191,000
November 5,403,028 3,849,010 4,041,000 4,466,000 4,851,000 4,790,000 4,557,000 4,020,000 4,716,004 4,041,000 3,510,000 3,266,000 3,253,000 3,179,000
December 4,149,021 4,348,014 3,852,000 4,597,000 4,237,000 3,317,000 3,837,000 3,764,000 4,592,004 3,293,007 3,703,000 3,016,000 3,737,100 3,011,000
January 4,187,013 3,934,009 4,773,000 3,708,000 4,028,000 3,543,000 4,613,000 4,417,000 3,769,003 3,500,000 3,962,000 3,422,000 3,219,100 3,017,000
February 4,785,012 4,690,010 4,540,000 4,529,000 4,437,000 4,440,000 4,374,000 3,829,005 4,379,008 3,751,000 3,717,000 2,982,000 3,131,000 3,687,000
March 4,159,011 4,315,013 5,012,000 5,543,000 4,362,000 3,883,000 3,811,000 3,622,004 3,480,004 3,280,000 3,280,006 2,992,000 2,784,000 2,796,000
April 4,201,009 3,687,003 4,321,000 4,965,000 4,010,000 3,797,000 4,041,000 5,713,009 3,809,003 3,650,000 4,248,000 3,367,000 3,072,000 3,170,000
May 3,987,008 3,938,003 3,893,000 4,056,000 4,384,000 4,494,000 4,286,000 5,192,007 3,787,003 3,988,000 3,547,000 3,576,000 3,270,000 3,198,000
June 5,473,014 5,039,000 4,096,000 5,871,000 4,650,000 4,882,000 3,843,000 3,707,007 4,378,003 4,190,000 3,765,000 3,571,000 3,808,000 3,387,000

Total 57,391,227 52,521,112 52,295,000 56,096,000 54,330,000 50,477,000 49,827,004 51,597,032 58,904,049 47,012,014 44,388,006 39,881,000 40,161,200 38,246,000 13,183,000

Unaccounted-For Water (%)

FY 2011 - 2012 FY 2012 - 2013 FY 2013 - 2014 FY 2014 - 2015 FY 2015 - 2016 FY 2016 - 2017 FY 2017 - 2018 FY 2018 - 2019 FY 2019 - 2020 FY 2020 - 2021 FY 2021 - 2022 FY 2022 - 2023 FY 2023 - 2024 FY 2024 - 2025 FY 2025 - 2026

Month % % % % % % %
July 38 54 33 28 34 28 43 34 19 29 44 25 51 41 32
August 30 42 21 10 16 42 18 41 8 33 24 17 46 47 26
September 36 55 21 8 6 21 33 40 12 19 13 35 53 49 26
October 35 55 23 38 37 24 37 45 33 13 32 61 56 28
November 22 23 29 24 10 17 22 42 20 29 26 33 66 43
December 42 18 28 9 29 55 58 54 10 51 10 51 30 40
January 33 35 28 38 30 45 41 31 33 34 12 27 32 42
February 17 18 34 31 28 25 19 43 19 23 9 30 15 5
March 53 29 28 24 34 36 40 40 43 34 8 42 39 38
April 50 40 33 28 24 39 32 2 38 27 13 41 18
May 57 41 41 41 29 26 27 23 43 7 12 21 44 17
June 45 -1 38 7 37 24 36 52 35 4 16 -7 41 22

Average 38 37 30 24 26 32 34 37 26 27 17 27 43 35 28



Warrenton Police Department

DATE EVENT TYPE STATUS
10/14/2025 Injury to Real Property Closed
10/16/2025 Hit and Run- Failure to stop at scene Active

Board of Commissions Meeting - November 2025 (reporting period: October)



Activity Log Event Summary (Cumulative Totals)
Warrenton Police Department

(10/01/2025 - 10/31/2025)

911 Hang-up 1 Accident 7

Alarm Activation 8 Animal Complaint 1

Assist Fire Dept 4 Assist Highway Patrol 1

Assist WC EMS 6 Assist WCSO 4

C.O.P.S.- Foot Patrol 2 Careless and Reckless Driving 1

Complaint 1 Disabled Vehicle 3

Dispute 2 Disturbance 1

Domestic 1 Downed Tree / Power Line 1

DWI 1 Escort 5

Follow up Investigation 2 Foot Patrol 5

Information by Phone 1 Injury to Real Property 1

Investigation and/or Interview 3 Juvenile Issues 1

Littering 2 Lost property 1

Missing Person – Attempt to Locate 1 Non Law Enforcement Issue 2

Non-Law Enforcement Issue 1 Other 3

Patrol 6 Property Check – Business 71

Property Check – Residential 28 Suspected Drunk Driver 1

Suspicious Person / Vehicle 8 Talk with Officer 8

Traffic Control 4 Traffic Stop 1

Trespassing 1 Welfare Check 1

Total Number Of Events:  202

Date: 11/06/2025 -- Time:  10:52 Page 1



                                                                                                                                     

 
P.O. Box 281 

Walter M. Gardner, Jr. – Mayor                                                                 Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 
Robert F. Davie, Jr. – Town Administrator                                 (252) 257-1122   Fax (252) 257-9219 

www.warrenton.nc.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
     

BOC Meeting October 2025 – Action Items Checklist 
 

1. Make changes to zoning map with Reynolds Tavern change. (cont.) 

2. Execute recombination deed with Mayor and submit to Mitch Styers for filing at Register 

of Deeds. 

✓ Awaiting a reply from Mitch Styers 

3. Coordinate with Aaron Ayscue and Jason Young the removal of the siren 

✓ Waiting till street paving is completed 

4. Update ordinances with angled parking additions 

✓ Done 

5. Follow up with NCDOT on additional crosswalks 

✓ Emailed Reid Davidson, NCDOT Engineer.  Determined crosswalk possible at S. 

Main and Market Streets.  Applied for grant from NCDOT to paint crosswalk at S. 

Main and Market Streets.  (All other streets not sufficient with ADA accessibility.) 

6. Notify Special Use permitees 

✓ Done 

7. Double check crossing street with alcohol 

✓ Contacted NCDOT.  Town Mgr of Louisburg unaware of any DOT constraints.  

NCDOT engineer determined there are no constraints from DOT. 

8. Investigate options to opt out of early voting and voting at one location on election day 

✓ Contacted Debbie Formyduval.  Will follow up when she returns from surgery. 



                                                                                                                                     

 
P.O. Box 281 

Walter M. Gardner, Jr. – Mayor                                                                 Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 
Robert F. Davie, Jr. – Town Administrator                                 (252) 257-1122   Fax (252) 257-9219 

www.warrenton.nc.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
STATUS OF GRANTS   
 
NC DEQ Waste Water SRP-W-0224 

• Town awarded $1,000,000 for improvements to the town’s sewer lines.  (SRP projects 
limited to $3MM award every 5 years for both water and sewer.)  Engineering plans due 
to State by December 2025.  Possible project bid Spring 2026.   

 
NC DEQ WWTP SRP-W-0220 

• $2,000,000 awarded.  Project to replace 44-year-old rotors and clean out oxidation ditch 
#1, which are currently the most critical issues at the WWTP and bring oxidation ditch 
#2 online.  Engineering plans being developed, due to State by June 2026. 

 
NC DEQ Water Infrastructure Rehab SRF-D-2057 

• Town-Wide Water System Improvements: $1,564,600 (Received award notice.)  
Engineering plans have been submitted to the State for review.  Possible project bid in 
Winter 2025. 

 
NC DEQ Water AIA Stormwater Planning SRP-SW-0007 

• Town awarded $400,000 for stormwater planning.  Town has adopted resolution 
accepting award.  Awaiting further direction/meetings from Municipal Engineering. 

 
Golden Leaf Storm Water Grant 

• Town awarded $196,447.50 for stormwater repairs to Brehon Street. 

• Survey of affected area is complete.   

• Construction began on 5/5/2025.  Recently approved 220 feet stormwater piping 
connecting to the project area, will begin construction in November.    

 
FEMA Cybersecurity Grant: 

• State and Local Cybersecurity Grant awarded to the town of Warrenton in the amount 
of $48,982.  Sequentially implementing parts of grant project.     

 
 
 
 
 



 
FEMA Generator Grant: 

• Town on the list to receive funding to establish backup generators at Red Hill Loop and 
Ridgeway Warrenton pump stations totaling approximately $170,000.  During power 
outages this will keep user sewage flowing and reduce costs of pumping out sewage.     

 
NCDEQ: 

• NC Dept of Air Quality grant application for replacement of EV Charging Station in 
amount of approximately $141,000.  This 100% grant has been awarded to the Town of 
Warrenton.  Construction of the charging station to begin in November.  

 
NCDEQ: 

• Spring round of funding from NCDEQ has been preliminarily announced.  Warrenton has 
been approved grants to receive $3,000,000.  

 
USDA Community Facilities: 

• USDA has awarded the Town a grant/loan package for purchase of leaf machine.  
$93,000 total, requesting $50,000 in grant funding and $43,000 financed over 5 years 
with annual payment of $9898.  Awaiting delivery of leaf machine to hold closing.  USDA 
also closed due to federal government shutdown.      

 
NCLM Assistance Grant 

• Funded by ARP through NCLM, the League engaged the legal firm of Parker Poe to assist 
the Town in making changes, at no cost to the Town, to:  

o Compliance of zoning code with any updated requirements from state 
o Review of sign ordinances 
o Recommendations for driveway sizes 

Estimate items to be presented to Board in Fall 2025 
 







 
TOWN OF WARRENTON 
"Historically Great  -  Progressively Strong" 

P. O. Box 281 
Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 

PHONE  (252) 257-3315          FAX  (252) 257-9219 
www.warrenton.nc.gov 

 
STATEMENT OF INTEREST TO SERVE 

 
If you are a Town of Warrenton or Warren County resident and would like to be appointed or 
volunteer your time and expertise to your community, please complete and return to: 
 

Warrenton Board of Commissioners 
c/o Town Administrator 

P O Box 281 
Warrenton, NC  27589 

 
Please list in order of preference the Boards and Commissions for which you would be willing to serve: 
 
1. _______________________________________                      3. ______________________________________ 
 
2. _______________________________________                      4. ______________________________________ 
 
 
Your full name: ________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Date of Birth: _________________________      Sex ______________          Race _________________ 
 
Mailing Street Address: __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
City and Zip Code ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Home Phone _________________         Work Phone __________________      Cell Phone _________________ 
 
Job Title ___________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Company or Agency _________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Email Address ______________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Are you a full time resident of the Town of Warrenton    _____ YES        _____  NO 
 
 
Educational Background 
 
Name of High School Attended ________________________________________________________________ 
 
Name of College Attended  ___________________________________________________________________ 
 
Degree Received ___________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
Please list any military experience and rank when discharged ________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________ ____________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

Mobile User
Revitalization committee 

Mobile User
Jacob Twisdale

Mobile User
10/28/1982

Mobile User
Male

Mobile User
Caucasian

Mobile User
317 Fairview St.

Mobile User
Warrenton, nc 27589

Mobile User
919-939-3946

Mobile User
919-939-3946

Mobile User
Sr. Systems engineer 

Mobile User
Lumen Technologies

Mobile User
jacob.twisdale@gmail.com

Mobile User
+

Mobile User
Northern Vance High School

Mobile User
Colorado Technical Institute

Mobile User
US Navy. Dec 14 2004 - Dec 14 2009

Mobile User
Petty Officer 2nd Class. (E-5)



 
 
 
If you are presently serving or have previously served as an elected or appointed official, please explain: _______ 
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
__________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
Please list all past employers and volunteer experience you have had which may be beneficial in evaluating your 
qualifications.  Please feel free to attach a resume if so desired. 
 
Work Experience ________________________________________________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
_______________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
Volunteer Experience _____________________________________________________________________________  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
________________________________________________________________________________________________  
 
 
How did you become aware of Town of Warrenton volunteer or appointment opportunities?  (Please circle appropriate response) 
 
Newspaper              Current Town of Warrenton Volunteer             Web Site              Staff               Other 
 
If other, please explain _____________________________________________________________________________ 
 
 
I affirm that the above statements are true and if appointed, I will serve to the best of my ability. 
 
 
Signature ______________________________________ 
 
Date ______________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

Mobile User
N/A

Mobile User
Assist in arranging and setting up for events at Mill Hill brewery.

Mobile User
Assisted in setting up for the past few festivals since I have moved to Warrenton, Nc

Mobile User
Michael Coffman, Darren Moore

Mobile User
11/3/2025





SOCIAL DISTRICT REGISTRATION 
Pursuant to NC General Statute §18B-904.1, social districts established by a county or a city 

must be registered with the North Carolina Alcoholic Beverage Control Commission. 

JURISDICTION

Name of County: 

Name of City: 

County (N.C.G.S. 153A-145.9)

  City (N.C.G.S. 160A-205.4)

HOURS 

List the days and hours during which alcoholic beverages may be consumed in the Social District. 
(ex. Sun, 12pm - 12am, Fri, 8am - 2am, Sat, 8am - 2am)

ATTACHMENTS

Please include the following attachments with this registration form:

1. Detailed map of the Social District with the boundaries clearly marked.
2. Copy of the ordinance establishing the Social District.
3. Photos/images of the signs as required under §18B-904.1(c)(1).
4. Copy of the Social District management and maintenance plans as required under

§18B-904.1(c)(2). (optional)

Name of Official submitting Social District Registration: 

Email address of Official submitting Social District Registration: 

Phone number of Official submitting Social District Registration: 

Date submitted: 

This registration may be submitted via: 

Email: permits@abc.nc.gov 

or 

US Mail: NC ABC Commission 
ATTN: Social District Registration 
400 East Tryon Road 
Raleigh NC 27610 



 

© 2022? NC Retail Merchants Association. 
Information in this publication may not be reproduced or otherwise disseminated by non-NCRMA members without prior consent. 

Please note that while this document is intended to help you comply with North Carolina law, it is in no way intended to serve as legal advice. Please 
consult a licensed attorney to address more specific questions that may arise concerning this issue. 

 

 
North Carolina’s Updated Laws on Social Districts 

 
In September 2021, Governor Roy Cooper signed into law House Bill 890 (HB 890) – ABC Omnibus Legislation – which 
passed both the House and Senate with bi-partisan support. Included in HB 890 was a provision allowing local 
governments to create social districts in North Carolina. The North Carolina Retail Merchants Association (NCRMA) was 
the major interest group pushing for the passage of this important legislation to drive foot traffic to downtown businesses 
and level the playing field for brick-and-mortar businesses with ABC permits. In a little less than a year since the 
enactment of HB 890, nearly twenty municipalities have successfully created social districts in towns as small as 
Norwood to cities as big as Greensboro. Numerous other cities are investigating the creation of social districts based on 
how successful the social districts have become with customers and businesses alike.  
 
The passage of legislation creating social districts also resulted in some legal questions posed to the North Carolina 
Alcoholic Control Commission, Alcohol Law Enforcement, and local city attorneys.  
 
In June 2022, House Bill 211 (HB 211) – Social District/Common Area Clarifications - passed both the House and Senate 
with bi-partisan support and was subsequently signed into law by the Governor on July 7, 2022. This legislation provides 
some much-needed clarity to the original social district legislation and includes more detail on the inter-workings of social 
districts.  
 
The sections of the North Carolina General Statutes regulating social districts contained in HB 890 were repealed and 
replaced with a brand-new section of Chapter 18B to regulate social districts. However, any social districts created in 
2021 remain in place. The information detailed below provides context on North Carolina’s initial law allowing for the 
creation of social districts and clarifications to this law established via the recent passage of HB 211.  
 
What is a Social District?  
 
A social district is a defined area in which a person may consume alcoholic beverages sold by an ABC permittee located 
within the social district. A social district may include both indoor and outdoor areas of businesses within or contiguous to 
the defined area during the days and hours set by the local government in creating the social district. A social district may 
include privately owned property, including permittees and non-permittee businesses, and multi-tenant establishments, as 
well as public streets, crosswalks, or parking areas whether the streets or parking areas are closed to vehicle traffic.  
 
This revised definition clears up any confusion as to whether a social district can cross a public street or road and whether 
a social district may be created in a privately owned area of a local government jurisdiction, such as a shopping center. It 
also clarifies that a social district may may include both indoor and outdoor areas of businesses within, or contiguous to, 
the defined area during the days and hours set by the local government. It should be noted that it is the sole decision of a 
business located within the geographic area of a social district whether to participate in the activities of the social district.  
 
 
 
 
 



© 2022 NC Retail Merchants Association. 
Information in this publication may not be reproduced or otherwise disseminated by non-NCRMA members without prior consent. 

Please note that while this document is intended to help you comply with North Carolina law, it is in no way intended to serve as legal advice. Please 
consult a licensed attorney to address more specific questions that may arise concerning this issue. 

 

Who Can Designate a Social District?  
 
Neither HB 890 nor HB 211 created a statewide social district, but instead allows cities and counties to “opt-in” to social 
districts via an ordinance.  

• A city may adopt an ordinance designating an area within the municipal limits as a social district under G.S. 
160A-205.4.  

• A county may adopt an ordinance designating a social district from an area located outside a municipal boundary 
under G.S. 153A-145.9.  

• Once created, a local government may also eliminate a social district by ordinance.  
• HB 211 did clarify that a local government may create more than one social district within its jurisdiction.  

 
What are the Requirements for a City or County to Create a Social District?  
 

• Social districts must be clearly defined, and signage must be posted in conspicuous locations indicating: 
o The geographic area included in the social district. 
o The days and hours during which alcoholic beverages can be consumed in the social district. 
o The telephone number for the ALE Division and Local Law Enforcement with jurisdiction over the social 

district. 
o A clear statement that an alcoholic beverage purchased for consumption in a social district shall: 

 only be consumed within the social district and 
 be disposed of before the person possessing the alcoholic beverage exits the social district unless 

the person is reentering the licensed ABC premises where the alcoholic beverage was purchased.  
• Social districts are only allowed to operate during hours defined under G.S. 18B-1004:  

o From 7:00 am until 2:00 am Monday – Saturday; and 
o From Noon until 2:00 am on Sunday 

 If the local government has allowed for earlier Sunday Sales, a social district may operate 
beginning at 10:00 am on Sunday  

• A local government creating a social district is required to establish management and maintenance plans for the 
social district and post these plans, along with a drawing of the boundaries and the applicable days and hours of 
the social district, on the local government’s website. A social district must be maintained in a manner that 
protects the health and safety of the general public. 

• Under HB 211, a local government is now authorized to delegate the management and maintenance of the 
social district to a private entity, such as a downtown development organization, local chamber of 
commerce or owner of a shopping center.  

• A local government may also establish guidelines in their social district allowing for suspension of 
regular days and hours of alcohol consumption in all or part of a social district during events requiring 
special events ABC permits.   

• Before a social district can become operational, a local government must submit to the North Carolina Alcoholic 
Beverage Control (ABC) Commission a detailed map of the social district with the boundaries clearly marked and 
the days and hours during which alcoholic beverages can be consumed (G.S. 18B-904.1(c)(3)).  

• The ABC Commission has created a specific form for a local government to submit this documentation 
and can be found here: 

• NC ABC Commission Social District Registration Link 
• A local government is only required to submit a revised map to the ABC Commission if the local 

government changes the geographic area of a social district. It should be noted that a local government is 
not required to identify the businesses or ABC permittees located within the social district or if there is a 
change in businesses located within the social districts that are participating in the social district.  

https://portal.abc.nc.gov/Web%20Documents/Sections/Permits/Retail/1.%20Social%20District%20Registration%20Form/Social%20District%20Registration%20Form.pdf


© 2022 NC Retail Merchants Association. 
Information in this publication may not be reproduced or otherwise disseminated by non-NCRMA members without prior consent. 

Please note that while this document is intended to help you comply with North Carolina law, it is in no way intended to serve as legal advice. Please 
consult a licensed attorney to address more specific questions that may arise concerning this issue. 

 

• A local government is required to develop or approve uniform signs indicating that a non-permittee business is 
included in the social district and allows alcoholic beverages on its premises when the social district is active and 
distribute the signs to non-permittee businesses that are included in the social district.  

• The signs may be in the form of a sticker, placard, or other format as deemed appropriate by the local 
government.  

• A non-permittee participating in the social district and allowing alcohol on their premises is required to 
always display the uniform sign during the times when the social district is active.  

• A customer may not bring an alcoholic beverage into a non-permittee business that does not display the 
uniform sign.  

• A local government may now delegate the designing of signage, cups, and window clings to a private 
entity such as a downtown development authority, local chamber or property management group with the 
local government maintaining ultimate decision-making on these items.   

 

Who Can Sell Alcohol in a Social District?  
 
A business holding any of the following ABC permits may sell alcohol to be consumed in a social district: 

1) An on-premises malt beverage permit issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-1001(1). 
2) An on-premises unfortified wine permit issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-1001(3). 
3) An on-premises fortified wine permit issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-1001(5).  
4) A mixed beverages permit issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-1001(10). 
5) A distillery permit issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-1001(5). 
6) A wine shop permittee issued pursuant to G.S. 18B-1001(16). 
 
Special one-time permits: The ABC Commission may issue special one-time permits pursuant to G.S. 18B-1002(a)(2) 
or (a)(5) for events occurring on premises located partially or entirely within the boundaries of a social district. This 
was an important clarification to the social district law contained in HB 211 because some local governments 
questioned whether they could create social district in an area where the local government conducted annual festivals 
where alcohol was sold.   

 
What Additional Rules Do ABC Permittees Have to Follow to Sell Alcohol Within a Social District?  
 
An ABC permittee must be located in or contiguous to the social district in which it is selling alcohol to be consumed.  
 
The ABC permittee is only allowed to sell and serve alcoholic beverages on its licensed premises. In other words, the 
ABC permittee cannot sell alcoholic beverages in the street or down the street from its licensed premises just because the 
ABC permittee is located in, or contiguous to a social district.  
 
Alcoholic beverages that are being sold to be consumed in a social district can only be sold in a container that meets all 
the following requirements: 

1) The container clearly identifies the ABC permittee from which the alcoholic beverage was purchased.  
2) The container clearly displays a logo or some other mark that is unique to the social district in which it will be 

consumed.  
3) The container is not made of glass. 
4) The container displays, in no less than 12-point font, the statement, “Drink Responsibly – Be 21.” 
5) The container cannot hold more than sixteen fluid ounces.  

 



© 2022 NC Retail Merchants Association. 
Information in this publication may not be reproduced or otherwise disseminated by non-NCRMA members without prior consent. 

Please note that while this document is intended to help you comply with North Carolina law, it is in no way intended to serve as legal advice. Please 
consult a licensed attorney to address more specific questions that may arise concerning this issue. 

 

A local government may now create its social district ordinance so an ABC permittee or non-permittee business may 
allow a customer to possess and consume on the business’s premises alcoholic beverages purchased from any ABC 
permittee located in or contiguous to the social district.  

• This is a major change from HB 890 enacted in 2021 which prohibited a customer who had purchased an 
alcoholic beverage from one ABC permittee to enter the premises of another ABC permittee located in 
the social district.  

In summary, an ABC permittee in a social district is no longer prohibited from allowing a patron to enter their premises 
with an alcoholic beverage purchased at a different ABC permittee located within the social district if the local 
government chooses to write its social district ordinance to allow for this activity.   

 
Another major policy change contained in HB 211 allows ABC permittee and non-permittee businesses in multi-tenant 
establishments to be included and participate in a social district. This allows for a social district to be created in an area 
that is privately-owned such as in a mixed-used shopping center which contains residential units as well as businesses that 
sell or do not sell alcohol. 
 
If I am a Business in the Social District, but I Do Not Want Customers Coming into My Store with Alcoholic 
Beverages, Do I Have to Participate?  
 
No, any business without an ABC permit located in, or contiguous to, the designated social district has the option to 
participate, or not, in allowing customers with beverages to enter their premises. For example, Printers’ Books may 
remain open during designated social district hours but decide to post a sign that alcoholic beverages (or any beverages) 
are not allowed in their store even if they are located inside of the social district. 
 
Likewise, a business with an ABC permit located in, or contiguous to, the social district may decide to participate or not 
participate in allowing customers to leave their premises with an open container.  
 
HB 211 contained several clarifying changes concerning this question, including: 
 

• A participating non-permittee business is now required to always display the uniform sign during the times when 
the social district is active as to whether the business allows for patrons to enter their business with alcohol.  

• All non-permittee businesses that are part of a social district and allow customers to bring alcoholic beverages 
onto their premises are required to clearly post signage on any exits that do not open to the social district 
indicating that alcoholic beverages may not be taken past that point.  

o As example, if a non-ABC permittee has two points of ingress and egress with one point entering and 
exiting into the social district and one entering and exiting into an area not in the defined social district 
the business would have to post signage warning their customers not to exit the business with alcohol into 
the area not contained in the social district. This is to prevent a patron from unknowingly possessing an 
open container of alcohol outside of the social district.  

• During the days and hours when the social district is active, a non-permittee business that allows customers to 
bring alcoholic beverages onto its premises is required to allow law enforcement officers access to the areas of the 
premises accessible by customers.  

• In a major policy change from HB 890, HB 211 allows an ABC permittee or a non-permittee to possess and 
consume on the business’ premises alcoholic beverages purchased from any permittee located in the social 
district. HB 890 previously prohibited a local government from creating a social district that allowed an ABC 
permittee to allow a customer to bring an alcoholic beverage from a different ABC permittee onto their premises. 
G.S. 18B-300.1(f) allows an ABC permittee to allow a person to bring an alcoholic beverage purchased at a 
different ABC permittee onto their premises. Again, while this activity is allowed, the decision on whether to 
allow for this activity within a social district is up to the local government and how the local government 
determines to write their ordinance creating a social district.  



© 2022 NC Retail Merchants Association. 
Information in this publication may not be reproduced or otherwise disseminated by non-NCRMA members without prior consent. 

Please note that while this document is intended to help you comply with North Carolina law, it is in no way intended to serve as legal advice. Please 
consult a licensed attorney to address more specific questions that may arise concerning this issue. 

 

 
What Requirements Do Customers Have to Follow Within a Social District?  
 
A person can only possess and consume alcoholic beverages purchased from an ABC permittee located in, or contiguous 
to, the social district. A person cannot bring their own personal beer or wine into the social district for consumption.  
 
A person, including a customer who is in possession of an open container of an alcoholic beverage, may possess alcoholic 
beverages in closed containers in a social district to the extent allowed by law (ex: a person can buy a beer to drink in the 
required social district cup and take a four-pack to consume at home from a bottle shop). 
 
Any alcoholic beverages consumed in the social district must be consumed from the required container described above. 
In other words, a person cannot pour their wine or beer into a personal solo cup or any type of container other than the one 
meeting all the requirements for social districts.  
 
Alcoholic beverages shall only be possessed and consumed in the social district during the days and hours set by the city 
or county. If a city designates an area as a social district from 9:00 pm until midnight on Friday and Saturday, a person 
cannot consume alcohol in the social district at 9:00 pm on Wednesday.  
 
The sale and delivery of alcohol in a social district is subject to the same limitations for sales and deliveries of alcohol in 
North Carolina: 

• No more than two malt beverages or wine drinks at one time to a single patron 
• No more than one mixed beverage or spiritous liquor drink at one time to a single patron 

 
A person is required to dispose of any alcoholic beverage in the person’s possession prior to exiting the social district.  In 
other words, if a person is leaving the social district area, they must pour out or throw away their alcohol.  
 
Can Common Area Entertainment (CAE) Permits and Social Districts Co-Exist?  
 
In 2019, prior to the enactment of social district authorizing legislation, the General Assembly passed SB 290 – ABC 
Regulatory Reform Bill – that created a Common Area Entertainment (CAE) Permit. While individual tenants in multi-
tenant establishments, like food halls, were already allowed to serve alcohol within their defined premises – the multi-
tenant establishment did not have its own permit to allow customers to flow within the “common area” itself. 
 
This new CAE permit allowed the property owner or property owner’s association of a “multi-tenant establishment” with 
two or more alcohol-permitted businesses to have a designated consumption area on the property where individuals could 
purchase alcohol at establishments and take the open containers of this alcohol (including beer, wine, and spirituous 
liquor) in specially-designated cups off the designated premises of those businesses into a designated consumption area, or 
back onto the premises of a business, with permission of the business owner.  
 
Fast-forward to the 2021 legislative session, when the legislature passed HB 890 authorizing local governments to pass 
ordinances to designate social districts whereby customers of businesses located contiguous to the social district could 
take open containers of alcohol (including beer, wine, and spirituous liquor) in specially-designated cups off the premises 
of an ABC permitted establishment and into any areas designated as part of the social district. 
 
During the 2022 legislative session, HB 211 included clarifying provisions to answer questions that arose on the 
interaction of CAE permits and social districts such as:  

• Could CAEs be issued to mixed-use developments that had private streets open to vehicular traffic? 
• Can local governments pass ordinances designating social districts in mixed-use developments and/or privately-

owned property?  
• Can a social district and a special event permit work in tandem?  



© 2022 NC Retail Merchants Association. 
Information in this publication may not be reproduced or otherwise disseminated by non-NCRMA members without prior consent. 

Please note that while this document is intended to help you comply with North Carolina law, it is in no way intended to serve as legal advice. Please 
consult a licensed attorney to address more specific questions that may arise concerning this issue. 

 

HB 211 makes the following clarifications to the existing CAE and social district laws to address those questions: 
 

• A mixed-use development may obtain a CAE that encompasses the development, including privately owned 
streets, sidewalks, and courtyards and does not have to restrict or close these areas through the delineation of 
vertical boundaries. 

• A city or county may pass a social district ordinance that encompasses a mixed-use development and/or private 
property and may delegate management of that social district to the property owner or property owner’s 
association. 

• Various types of special event permits may act in conjunction with social districts, and cities/counties have 
flexibility to implement this process. For example, street festivals in a downtown area can operate in conjunction 
with a social district. 

• Property owners and cities/counties have flexibility to implement management and maintenance plans, which 
include limiting hours of consumption, creating signage, and providing security. 

 
The CAE permit will continue to be issued to the owner or property owners' association of a multi-tenant establishment, 
but a common area would be defined as "an indoor or outdoor portion of a multi-tenant establishment that is open to the 
public" and the permit holder can designate common areas to be "designated consumption areas" where consumption of 
alcoholic beverages is allowed. 
  
The designated consumption area may include: 
 

• Any indoor or outdoor area of a permittee business that is contiguous to a designated common area or  
• Any indoor or outdoor area of a non-permittee business that is contiguous to the designated common area and that 

chooses to allow customers to bring open containers of alcoholic beverages onto its premises.  
 
Additional requirements and clarifications involving a CAE Permit:  
 

• A permittee can be included in the designated consumption area even if it chooses to exclude open containers of 
alcoholic beverages purchased from other permittees.  

• Non-permittee businesses are not responsible for enforcing the alcohol laws but must allow law enforcement 
officers access to the areas of the premises accessible by customers.  

• The designated consumption areas must be submitted to and approved by the ABC Commission and  be marked 
in a way that clearly indicates to customers where the boundaries of the designated consumption area are located.  

• Open containers sold by a permittee for consumption in a designated consumption area must be in a container 
meeting several criteria, and the possession of closed containers would be allowed to the extent otherwise allowed 
by law. 

 
 



                                                                                                                                     

 
P.O. Box 281 

Walter M. Gardner, Jr. – Mayor                                                                 Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 
Robert F. Davie, Jr. – Town Administrator                                 (252) 257-1122   Fax (252) 257-9219 

www.warrenton.nc.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Frontier Warren Update 
 
Recent developments in Frontier Warren buildings (136 and 140 S. Main St.) include: 

• Frontier Natural Gas moved to their new building on Hwy 158 Bus.  This is a significant 
loss in revenue. 

• Second tenant has moved out freeing up additional space. 

• Rent from grocery store is several months behind, but has promised to get caught up 
shortly. 

 
Town’s leases end on May 14, 2026.   





                                                                                                                                     

 
P.O. Box 281 

Walter M. Gardner, Jr. – Mayor                                                                 Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 
Robert F. Davie, Jr. – Town Administrator                                 (252) 257-1122   Fax (252) 257-9219 

www.warrenton.nc.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
 
Woody King as Santa Claus 
 

• Staff requesting recognition for his years of service and continued service as Santa 
Claus.   

• Acknowledged with a Mayoral Proclamation. 

• $100 gift card from the Town 



                                                                                                                                     

 
P.O. Box 281 

Walter M. Gardner, Jr. – Mayor                                                                 Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 
Robert F. Davie, Jr. – Town Administrator                                 (252) 257-1122   Fax (252) 257-9219 

www.warrenton.nc.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Chris Privett Request for Cancellation of Accumulating Fees 
 

• Based on the June 30, 2025 notice letter, fees, assessed by the Town Administrator, 
have been accumulating at the rate of $100 per day from July 30, 2025. 

• Requester intends to submit a Certificate of Appropriateness to the Historic District 
Commission for approval of work that has already been constructed/completed.   
 



                                                                                                                                     

 
P.O. Box 281 

Walter M. Gardner, Jr. – Mayor                                                                 Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 
Robert F. Davie, Jr. – Town Administrator                                 (252) 257-1122   Fax (252) 257-9219 

www.warrenton.nc.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
June 30, 2025 
 
Mr. Chris Privett 
PO Box 646 
Warrenton, NC 27589 
 
This letter serves as official notice regarding unauthorized modifications to the property located at 
106 W. Macon Street, as well as the status of Certificate of Appropriateness (COA) applications for 
all properties under your ownership or control. 
 
Violation Summary: 

• It has come to the Town’s attention that modifications have been made to 106 W. Macon 
Street without prior review or approval, in willful violation of the Town of Warrenton 
Historic District Ordinances. 

• These unauthorized changes were undertaken while an application for a COA was pending 
for a separate property, 112 W. Macon Street, raising concerns about intent and 
compliance. 

 
Penalties and Required Actions: 

• A civil fine of $100 is hereby assessed for this violation. 
• You are required to restore the property at 106 W. Macon Street to its original condition, 

prior to the unauthorized modifications, within thirty (30) calendar days of the date of this 
letter. 

• Failure to comply within this timeframe will result in additional fines of $100 per day until 
full compliance is achieved. 

 
Impact on Future COA Applications: 

• Effective immediately, no further COA applications will be reviewed or approved for any 
property under your ownership or control until the violation at 106 W. Macon Street is fully 
resolved and the property is brought into compliance. 

 
Please see the relevant ordinance excerpts included at the end of this letter for your reference. If 
you have any questions or wish to discuss this matter further, feel free to contact me at (252) 257-
1122. 
 
Robert Davie 
Town Administrator 



 
 
 
 
Historic District Ordinances 
 
§153.91 Other Remedies and penalties of enforcement.  

(A) Permit denial: An application for a Town permit or renewal thereof hereunder may be 
denied by the Town manager or his designee if the prospective Town permittee fails to 
comply with any of the requirements of sections of the Historic District ordinance, 
above or if a material violation exists of any provision of this article.  
 

(B) Permit revocation: The Town permit shall be revoked by the Town manager or his 
designee for any material violation of this article or for false representations made in 
securing a permit hereunder. The Town manager or his designee may revoke the Town 
permit by notifying the Town permittee holder in writing and stating the reason for 
revocation. any Town permittee whose permit is denied or revoked may appeal said 
denial or revocation to the full board of commissioners.  

 
(C) Civil penalty: Violation of this article subjects a violator to a civil penalty in the amount 

of $100.00. The Town manager or his designee may impose a civil penalty by giving the 
violator a written citation either in person or by registered mail, return receipt 
requested. The citation shall describe the nature of the violation, specify the amount of 
the civil penalty being imposed, and inform the violator to pay the civil penalty or 
correct the violation or both within the time limit. Any order to correct a violation shall 
specify a reasonable time period in which the violation may be brought into compliance 
(the "compliance period") and no additional penalties shall be assessed until the 
compliance period has expired. The Town may institute a civil action in the nature of a 
debt collection in a court of competent jurisdiction to recover any civil penalty assessed 
hereunder. 



Insert under Section 11, Article IV 

Town Vehicle Use Policy 

1. Purpose 

This policy establishes the rules and responsibilities for employees who operate vehicles owned or leased by the 

Town. Its purpose is to ensure safe, responsible, and lawful use of town vehicles. 

2. Scope 

This policy applies to all employees who are authorized to operate a vehicle owned, leased, or otherwise 

provided by the Town in the course of their employment. 

3. Eligibility and Authorization 

• Only employees with a valid driver’s license appropriate for the vehicle type may operate a town 

vehicle. 

• Employees must complete a Motor Vehicle Records (MVR) check prior to authorization and 

periodically thereafter. 

• Authorization to use a town vehicle may be revoked or suspended for any reason, including poor driving 

history or policy violations. 

4. Acceptable Use 

Town vehicles must be used exclusively for official town business. This includes: 

• Traveling between job sites 

• Performing services as part of job duties 

Personal use of town vehicles is strictly prohibited unless expressly authorized in writing by the Town Manager 

or Department Head. Some employees are authorized to drive town vehicles to and from work. 

5. Responsibilities of the Driver 

Employees operating town vehicles must: 

• Follow all local, state, and federal motor vehicle laws 

• Wear seat belts at all times and ensure passengers do the same 

• Not use mobile devices while driving unless hands-free 

• Not operate the vehicle under the influence of alcohol, drugs, or any substances that impair driving 

• Perform pre-trip inspections for safety (tires, lights, brakes, etc.) 

• Ensure the vehicle is locked and secured when unattended 

• Report any mechanical issues promptly to the appropriate department 

 



 

6. Accidents and Traffic Violations 

• All accidents must be reported immediately to the supervisor and appropriate law enforcement, 

regardless of severity. 

• A written incident report must be submitted to the supervisor the same day. 

• Employees found at fault for a motor vehicle accident will be subject to drug screening before returning 

to work. 

• Employees are personally responsible for any traffic or parking violations incurred while operating a 

town vehicle. 

7. Prohibited Activities 

Employees are prohibited from: 

• Transporting unauthorized passengers (e.g., family, friends, pets) 

• Smoking or vaping in any town vehicle 

• Using the vehicle for personal errands or commuting, unless authorized 

• Transporting illegal substances or weapons unless job-related and authorized 

8. Disciplinary Action 

Violations of this policy may result in: 

• Revocation of vehicle use privileges 

• Disciplinary action, up to and including termination 

• Financial responsibility for damages or violations, as permitted by law 

9. Policy Acknowledgment 

All employees authorized to use town vehicles must sign a statement acknowledging they have read, 

understood, and agree to comply with this policy. 

 

Approved by: [BOC] 

Effective Date: [MM/DD/YYYY] 

Review Date: [Annually] 

 













                                                                                                                                     

 
P.O. Box 281 

Walter M. Gardner, Jr. – Mayor                                                                 Warrenton, NC  27589-0281 
Robert F. Davie, Jr. – Town Administrator                                 (252) 257-1122   Fax (252) 257-9219 

www.warrenton.nc.gov 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 
Police Department Request for Prepaid Behavioral Health Coaching 
 

• Agreement can be cancelled with a 60 day notice.  

• $5 per employee per month for a total of $25 per month. 

• Line number: transfer money from medical line used for drug screening and FMRT in the 
hiring process.  (Medical and psychological screening.)   

 
Justification: 
 
To reduce potential legal liability and promote overall employee well-being, the Police 
Department would like to implement software designed to support health, wellness, and 
personal resilience. This tool would help employees strengthen their physical and mental 
fortitude, enabling them to better manage daily challenges and workplace stressors. By serving 
as a form of proactive maintenance, the program can help minimize future healthcare costs, 
workers’ compensation claims, and legal fees. 
 
In addition, the employer may experience measurable benefits such as increased productivity. 
 
Finally, this initiative fosters a positive workplace culture by demonstrating the Town’s 
commitment to the well-being of its officers and staff.  When employees feel valued and 
supported, morale and job satisfaction increase—ultimately improving retention and reducing 
turnover. 
 

















































REPRESENTATION AGREEMENT 

 

The terms of this Agreement, by and between the Town of Warrenton, hereinafter referred 

to as “Client,” and Teague, Campbell, Dennis & Gorham, L.L.P., hereinafter referred to as “Law 

Firm,” are set forth as follows: 

 

1. The Client hereby retains and employs the Law Firm for general representation related to 

the investigation and analysis of insurance coverage for the Client and other related matters about 

which the Client may need to seek the advice and counsel of the Law Firm.                     

 

2. The fee for this representation will be based upon time spent by attorneys and staff of the 

Law Firm on the above-described matters.  The Client agrees to pay the Law Firm for services to 

be rendered pursuant to this agreement, at the Law Firm’s hourly rate for the actual time spent in 

this representation.  The Law Firm’s hourly rate for attorney services to the Client is $350 per hour 

for associates and $450 for partners.  The hourly rate for paralegal services to the Client will be 

$175.00. Additionally, the Client agrees to pay costs and expenses, if any, paid or incurred by the 

Law Firm for the Client in connection with this representation.  The Law Firm will render 

statements at monthly intervals in increments of one tenth (1/10) of an hour for time expended 

providing services to the Client, which statements shall be due and payable upon receipt.  

 

Based on the information received to date, the Law Firm anticipates the initial review of material 

and communication regarding the same to take approximately 15 hours.  The Law Firm agrees to 

advise the Client, through its attorney, if additional time will be required to complete its review. 

 

3. The Law Firm will represent the Client promptly, efficiently, and zealously according to 

the highest legal and ethical standards. The Client shall have the right to terminate the services of 

the Law Firm at any time upon written notice to the Law Firm. The Law Firm shall also have the 

right to terminate its services at any time if the Law Firm determines that continuing services to 

the Client would be unethical, impractical, improper or otherwise undesirable. In the event of 

termination by the Client or the Law Firm, payment for legal services would be due through the 

termination date. 

 

 

This the ___ day of November, 2025. 

 

     Town of Warrenton 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

            

             

 

TEAGUE, CAMPBELL, DENNIS & GORHAM, L.L.P. 

 

 

By: _________________________________ 

William A. Bulfer 

 


	BOC Agenda November 2025
	Conflict of Interest Disclaimer - Citizen Comments Rules - Copy
	BOC Minutes 1st draft October 13 2025
	Public Hearing October 13 2025 Special Use Applications
	Mission and Goals
	Budget vs Actual Oct 2025
	Check Listing Oct 2025
	10. PW October 25
	10. WWTP October 25
	10...Fire Hydrants In Need of Repair REVISED 11-5-25
	October 2025 - Unaccounted for Water Percent Calculation
	Summary 

	PD Summary 2025
	Sheet1

	Activity Log Event Summary (Cumulative Totals)
	Action Items Oct 2025 BOC Meeting
	Status of Grants Nov 2025
	Statement of Interest to Serve - Jennifer Pierce
	Interest to Serve - Jacob Twisdale
	NCDOT Alcohol Highways
	NC ABC Social District Registration Form(1)
	2022 NC Updated Law on Social Districts
	Frontier Warren Update
	Letter from Frontier Natural Gas
	Woody King Resolution
	Chris Privett Request
	Letter to Chris Privett 6-30-2025
	Personnel Manual Insert under Section 11
	Utilities Underground or Moved -- Engineering Study Cost
	PD Well Being Software Justification
	Employment Assistance Agreement - Police Dept
	Debris Site Agreement - 10 year renewal
	Retainer Agreement - Town of Warrenton

	Jurisdiction: Off
	Name of County: 
	Name of City: 
	Hours: 
	Check Box Map: Off
	Check Box Ordinance: Off
	Check Box Signs: Off
	Check Box Plans: Off
	Name of Official: 
	Email of Official: 
	Phone of Official: 
	Date Submitted: 


